AGENDA

CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, MAY 8, 2023
REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL
HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM
400 WEST KING AVENUE
5:00 P.M.

Conference Line call: 1 (415) 655-0001 and
when prompted type access code: 126 210 9951 #
OR
Live Videostream: htip://www.cityofkingsville.com/webex

. Preliminary Proceedings.
OPEN MEETING
PPRQVED BY:

A
INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate) %/ ¢

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) Mark McLaughuis”
Regular Meeting April 24, 2023 City Manager
ll. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."
None.

lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.2

‘At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development, Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report, Accounting & Finance — Financial & Investment
Information, Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports,
Utilities Billing Update; Police & Fire Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports;
Streets Update; Public Works, Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park
Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects, Emergency Management,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, SEP, Legislative Update, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor, Wastewater Treatment Plant, Water And Wastewater Rate Study
Presentation. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Page 10f 3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
MAY 8, 2023



IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items.?

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

V. Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT_MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance
by granting a Special Use Permit for indoor recreational use in C2 (Retail District) at
Andrews 1, Lot S '90 A, (Fastenal), also known as 1911 S. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville,
Texas; amending the comprehensive plan to account for any deviations from the
existing comprehensive plan. (Interim Director of Planning & Development Services).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to accept and expend Youth Pony League donations for uniforms,
equipment, and umpire and scorekeeper services. (Parks Director).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:
VL. Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

3. Consideration and approval of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of “City of
Kingsville, Texas Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2023"; entering into a Purchase and Investment Letter and a Paying
Agent/Registrar Agreement; and approving other matters relating thereto. (City
Attorney).

4. Consider a resolution authorizing Phase [l Change Order #2 for the City-Wide Misc.
Concrete and Drainage System Improvements Agreement between the City and ETech
Construction Inc. (Bid#21-11). (City Engineer).

5. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Proposal for
Services with Ardurra Group, Inc. for a utility easement. (City Engineer).

6. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget
to appropriate funding for utility easement surveying costs. (City Engineer).

7. Consider a resolution supporting the City of Kingsville’s Application to the Texas
Department of Transportation’s 2023 Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TA) Call
for Projects (for pedestrian and/or bicycle infrastructure); authorizing the Mayor to act
on the City's behalf with such program. (Step 2-Detailed Application). (City Engineer).

Page2of3
AGENDA — KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
MAY 8, 2023



8. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget
to appropriate additional funding for the increase in All-Risk and Windstorm Property
Insurance effective May 2023. (Human Resources director).

9. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget
to reclass donation from General Fund 001 to Park Maintenance Fund 093. (Finance
Director).

10. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget
to appropriate funding for first interest payment on the Water Meter Project Certificates
of Obligation. (Finance Director).

Vil. Adjournment.

No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.
No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.

Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with 5 affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address.

Items being considered by the Commission for action except citizen's comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this point without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Community Room are wheelchair accessible and accessible
parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodation or interpretive services must
be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office at
361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595-8024 or E-Mail mvalenzuela@cityofkingsville.com for further
information. Braille Is Not Available. The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn
into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of
the matters listed above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073
Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551-074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities:
Competitive Matters), and 551-087 (Economic Development) .

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin
board located at City Hall, 400 West King Ave, of the City of Kingsville, Texas, a place convenient
and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the
following date and time:

May 5, 2023, at 10:30 A.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding
the schedule time of said meeting.

‘Do Nawnapela
Mary Valeﬁ’zuela, TRMC, City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time:

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page30of3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
MAY 8, 2023




MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETING(S)



APRIL 24, 2023

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS HELD ON
MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2023, IN THE HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM, 400
WEST KING AVENUE, KINGSVILLE, TEXAS AT 5:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:
Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

Hector Hinojosa, Commissioner
Norma N. Alvarez, Commissioner
Ann Marie Torres, Commissioner

CITY COMMISSION ABSENT:
Edna Lopez, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

Kyle Benson, IT Manager

Derek Williams, IT

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Deborah Balli, Finance Director

Bill Donnell, Public Works Director

Susan lvy, Parks Director

Mike Mora, Capital Improvements Manager
Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director
Rudy Mora, Engineer

Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police

Joseph Ramirez, Engineers Assistant
Janine Reyes, Tourism Director

Kwabena Agyekum, Interim Director of Planning & Development Services/Senior Planner/HPO

l. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING

Mayor Fugate opened the meeting at 5:00 P.M. with four Commission members present.
Commissioner Lopez was absent.

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — (Mayor Fugate)
The invocation was delivered by Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)

Regular Meeting April 10, 2023

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve the minutes of April 10, 2023, as
presented, seconded by Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alvarez, Torres, Fugate voting “FOR”.

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1. Public hearing on request for a Special Use Permit for indoor recreational use
in C2 (Retail District) at Andrews 1, Lot S 90 A, (Fastenal), also known as 1911 S.
Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas. (Interim Director of Planning & Development

Services).
Mayor Fugate read and opened this public hearing at 5:02 P.M.

Page 1 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



Mr. Agyekum, Interim Director of Planning & Development Services stated that the
applicant would like to use the existing property for indoor recreational use, an indoor
batting cage, which will create recreational activities for the community. The property is
currently zoned C2-Retail. Staff has reviewed the application and the development
complies with the relevant codes and ordinances but requires a special use permit. The
Planning & Zoning Commission has met on this item and has voted unanimously to
approve the recommendation.

Mayor Fugate commented that this would be good for our community.

Mayor Fugate announced that this is a public hearing and if anyone would like to speak
on behalf of this item they may do so now with a five-minute limit. Additional time cannot
be extended by the City Commission.

There being no further comments Mayor Fugate closed this public hearing at 5:04 P.M
lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.>

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development, Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial & Investment
Information, Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports,
Utilities Billing Update; Police & Fire Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports;
Streets Update; Public Works; Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park
Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects, Emergency Management,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, SEP, Legislative Update, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor, Wastewater Treatment Plant, Water, And Wastewater Rate Study
Presentation. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Mr. Mark McLaughlin, City Manager gave a brief update on the current storm that occurred
over the weekend. No significant damage was done to the city. The rain gauge located at
the landfill registered about six inches of rain, which caused the landfill to close for any
citizen use. The landfill should be back to normal operations by tomorrow. He further
reported that the Loteria Festival held on Saturday, April 22, 2023, was a big success.

Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney reported that the next City Commission is scheduled
for Monday, May 8, 2023. Agenda items from staff are due no later than Friday, April 18,
2023.

Commissioner Alvarez commented that the trip to Mobile, AL for the USS Kingsville
Christening was very successful and educational. She further commented that the sponsor
of the USS Kingsville is a sixth generation of Richard King.

Commissioner Hinojosa commented that he is concerned about the school district going
into a four-and-a-half-day school week next school year. He further commented that he
would like to know what the city's role in this will be as he understands that staff has met
with school districts’ representatives already and asked if there will be a need for local
agreement. He further stated that he would like to wait untit Commissioner Lopez returns
to discuss this.

Page 2 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



Mayor Fugate commented that the city has no interest or opinion on the school district’s
decision as to whether they should go into a five-day or four-and-a-half-day school week
next school year. This is up to the school district to decide. They have asked the city if
they did go into a four-day school week, what options the city has to assist with the children
that will be out of school on Fridays.

Commissioner Hinojosa commented that he is aware that this is the decision of the school
district, but his concern is what role is the city playing in this situation. Will there be a local
agreement or memorandum of understanding? What will the liability be for the city and
does the city need to provide security? Commissioner Hinojosa further commented that
there are a lot of concerns with regard to this issue that need to be addressed.

Mayor Fugate commented that it is his understanding that there may be a memorandum
of understanding between the city and the school district.

Commissioner Hinojosa commented that he would like to see a workshop scheduled to
discuss what the role of the city will be if the school district goes to a four-and-a-half-day
week.

Mayor Fugate asked Mr. McLaughlin if the city would not be doing anything more than
what it already does, other than expanding the services.

Mr. McLaughlin responded that the city will not be creating any new programs other than
expanding the services it already provides. He further commented that the questions being
asked by Commissioner Hinojosa are great questions, which have already been discussed
with the school district leadership. Staff have asked the school district to draft a proposal
and forward it to the city for review.

Commissioner Hinojosa commented that he is not aware of what has been agreed to
between city staff and the school district, which is why he is questioning this.

Mr. McLaughlin commented that the city has not agreed to anything, other than just
discussing with the school district.

Mayor Fugate commented that whatever it is that the school district proposes, that will
need to come to the City Commission for approval.

Commissioner Torres asked that since it is the same services that the city will be providing,
why would the city need to have a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)?

Mayor Fugate commented that since the services will be extended and with Commissioner
Hinojosa bringing up some good points on this matter, it will need to be discussed and
placed into an MOU. Mayor Fugate further spoke about the USS Kingsville Christening
event that took place in Mobile, AL.

Commissioner Hinojosa commented that he was amazed by the ceremony for the USS
Kingsville.

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items.?
1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Mrs. Elizabeth Ramos, 615 Elizabeth commented that she has heard that some of the
City Commissioners are not aware of reviews that are written regarding D.R. Horton
Homes. She further stated that she would like to provide the Commission with five

Page 3 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



pages of what those reviews were online. She also stated that as she is aware that
agenda item 10, she would like to inform the Commission that D.R. Horton has been in
business for 53 years. They aren't accredited by BBB, which is odd; online the customer
review rating is 1.14 out of 5 stars. The consumer affairs reporting rating on D.R. Horton
is 1.7 out of 5 stars. She stated that there are 64 reviews on this company. She further
stated that she did some googling when it comes to D.R. Horton Builders in Texas
because she knows that supposedly the owner said that Texas D.R. Horton is different,
so she went online to find those. She stated that Rancho Vista in Corpus Christi is 2.5
stars online. She stated that one of the reviews said, "I have no idea why anybody
would ever purchase from these builders. | have never seen such poor craftmanship
and quality value." She says the list goes on. London town, over six months in the
subdivision, am still waiting to get warranty work and items fixed that were promised
after closing. She stated that there are some in San Antonio, not having to endure the
cut corners, foundation needs repair and they buried garbage under the grass, poor
construction with another person stating, where do | begin, do not buy from D.R. Horton.
She further stated that another person stated that the home was made so sloppy, save
your money, and don't buy a home from D.R. Horton. Mrs. Ramos commented that she
can't stress enough that we do need nice new homes, but the quality coming from D.R.
Horton could be detrimental to future home buyers. Mrs. Ramos stated that she does
not want to hear the complaints in the future and believes that we should go with
someone who is offering to build homes with a different company, a different builder.
She stated that this is her opinion on this.

Mr. James Glusing, 3209 S. Brahma Blvd. commented that he has some questions
from when the workshop was held last Fall and was wondering that other than the
people that were directly involved with the construction, he believes there wasn't any
positive feedback that came from the community. He stated that they were also told
that there would be some new explosive news that would be coming, which he is not
aware of if it has ever been publicized. He stated that they were told that this would
come out on December 24" As of today, the neighbors and those in the community
have not been kept up to date on what's happening. He stated that he understands that
there was a plot map that was on the agenda for today, which he understands is new.
He further stated that they only want to find out what is happening. He further
commented that it is not as positive from everybody coming from the community that is
being said.

Mr. Jaime Rocha, 401 Jay Vee commented that he would like to echo his co-citizen
statement and was wondering if there was an update from the city or the Economic
Development Council on the Oxi deal and the plant going on to the King Ranch. He
further commented that there was also a big assurance that there would be a big
announcement at Christmas, and it wasn't delivered, which is a disappointment. He
asked if there was any way to find out what happened and are we still waiting on that
announcement or are we moving on to something else. He further commented that as
citizens, they deserve it because they were assured and guaranteed, you just wait, just
wait, which is how they left the meeting, and as citizens, they deserve a follow-up to
that. He further commented that based on the plot that is on the agenda, it doesn't seem
that any of the concerns that were brought up by the citizens during the town meeting
were addressed, the congestion, density of houses, no buffer zones, drainage issues,
no playground area or green space available in that neighborhood. He stated that it
seems as if everything that was said at that meeting wiped off carte blanche, which is
disappointing as a citizen of Kingsville; they came to have their voices heard and none
of them were given any space in the amendment or process going forward. He further
commented that if anyone else came in to discuss this, this is the only time to say
anything about this development. When they get to the actual agenda item, five votes
from the Commission will be needed to allow for comments, and presently there are not

Page 4 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



five Commission members present. If anyone has something to say on Somerset, this
is the time.

V. Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions, and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve the consent agenda as
presented, seconded by Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Torres, Hinojosa, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 budget to accept and expend grant funds from the Coastal Bend
Regional Advisory Council for Fire Department medical supplies. (Fire Chief).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 budget to accept and expend grant funds from Operation Stonegarden
for various Police Department expenditures. (Police Chief).

3. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 budget to appropriate funding to cover additional Street Department
vehicle maintenance. (Public Works Director).

REGULAR AGENDA

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:
VI. Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

4. Consider authorizing renewal of All-Risk Property Insurance Coverage for the
City of Kingsville for the period of May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024, as per
consultant’s recommendation. (Human Resources Director).

Mrs. Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director stated that this will authorize the
award of the All-Risk Property Insurance Coverage for the City of Kingsville for the
period of May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024. This policy covers perils of Fire, Flood,
Earthquake, lightning, Windstorm, Named Storms, and Equipment Breakdown. The
city's Total Insured Values for this renewal with the incumbent insurance carrier,
AmRisc, are $62,872,506 an increase of $4,407,848 comprised of valuation increases
due to inflation and new assets. Carlisle Insurance also solicited guotes from 37
additional property insurance carriers that underwrite Coastal Windstorm and all other
peril risks. The enclosed renewal quote of $502,020.96 is an increase of $173,828.21
as compared to the expiring premium. The increase is due primarily to the property
insurance marketplace which is driven by global and domestic property insurance
losses.

Page 5 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



Mr. Andrew Langford, the representative of Carlisle Insurance, stated that we are
probably in one of the worst property and casualty insurance markets that anyone has
ever seen. Last year 18 catastrophic weather events across the United States were
over a billion dollars in losses and on average before that there were 8. There has been
a significant increase in weather events which leads to an increase in insurance
policies. He stated that they have approached 35 various markets to acquire property
insurance for the city and AmRisc their incumbent carrier has provided the best deal.
He stated that when they go to market, they talk about the various aspects of the city
schedule and valuations and AmRisc is requiring us to increase the valuations. Looking
back at the history of valuations, valuations for the city had not increased since 2018,
so it is being increased by 7.9% which attributes cost to the premium, as well as a rate
increase. As has been stated, $4.4 million in insured value is what they are increasing
as well as a 37% increase. Mr. Langford stated that everything listed on the list that has
been provided to the city is a list of what is being insured. Some of these items can be
removed if the city wishes to do so.

Commissioner Hinojosa asked that under the column that says increase value, what
does this mean?

Mr. Langford commented that they use an estimator system that gives a replacement
cost for buildings which is the increase in dollar amount valuations that are attributing
to the $4.4 million.

Commissioner Hinojosa asked if this counts for inflation increases.

Mr. Langford replied yes. This hadn’t been done since 2018 and it is the prudent thing
to do given the state of construction cost. This is something that needs to be looked
into every 3 to 5 five years so that the city does not fall behind. If the square footage is
added up on some of the buildings, at $130 to $140 a square foot it could cost around
$230 to $250 a square foot to replace a building.

Commissioner Torres asked that as there are several fences on the list, are these on
an empty property?

Mr. Langford responded that there is an address associated with it so that you can see
where the location of this. He further stated that when it comes to talking about cutting
costs, they are with the most competitive carrier, so the next option is to remove
structures and if this is something the City would like to do it would need to renew...

Ms. Alvarez commented that the fencing that is listed on the list is required by TCEQ to
be around the city's water wells, water towers, and water tanks as well as fencing at
the parks and lift stations.

Commissioner Torres asked if it is required to have the fencing, property, and building
insured.

Mr. Langford responded that the city does not need to have it all insured. If the city
would like certain items from the list, it can.

Commissioner Torres stated that there are around 6 that are at about $5,000.
Mr. Langford stated that it won't save much money if these are removed from the list.

Mrs. Gonzales stated that she has spoken with Mr. Carlisle when they went over the
information and if the city decided to remove some of these items from the list to try
and keep the premiums to what the city already had, it could be less than $7,000 to
$10,000 in premiums.

Commissioner Torres then asked that the fence that is valued at $39,000 won't make
a difference.

Mr. Langford stated that it will make a difference, but it would need to be multiplied by
the rate. It could be around $500 to $1,000.
Page 6 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



Mrs. Gonzales stated that one of the things that were indicated by Mr. Carlisle is that if
there is an event, some of the things that will go first are some of the smaller things,
but it's the cost of the total property to make the deductible, as the city’s deductible did
increase. She further stated that everything in the schedule is covered but there is now
a limit of $50 million, which is different than the current policy.

Mr. Langford stated that last year the policy covered the full limits of all the properties
on the schedule at $66 million. This year, for name storm only, they are limiting, which
doesn't apply to fire or other wind events, there is a $25 million loss limit on this policy.
The deductible has also increased from a 3% to 5%. He stated that at this time we are
in one of the worst property markets that anyone has ever seen.

Motion made by Commissioner Hinojosa to authorize the renewal of All-Risk
Property Insurance Coverage for the City of Kingsville for the period of May 1,
2023, through April 30, 2024, as per consultant’s recommendation, seconded by
Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and approved by the following
vote: Torres, Hinojosa, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

5. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance by
granting a Special Use Permit for indoor recreational use in C2 (Retail District) at
Andrews 1, Lot S 90 A, (Fastenal), also known as 1911 S. Brahma Bivd.,
Kingsville, Texas; amending the comprehensive plan_to_account_for_any
deviations from the existing comprehensive plan. (Interim Director of Planning &
Development Services).

introduction item.

6. Consider accepting donations for the Kingsville Parks Youth Pony League.
(Parks Director).

Motion made by Commissioner Hinojosa to accept the donations for the
Kingsville Park Youth Pony League, seconded by Commissioner Torres. The
motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alvarez,
Torres, Fugate voting “FOR”.

7. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023
budget to accept and expend Youth Pony Leaque donations for uniforms,
equipment, and umpire and scorekeeper services. (Parks Director).

Introduction item.

8. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter an
Intergovernmental Support Agreement between Naval Air Station Kingsville and
the City of Kingsville for road repair and maintenance, lift station maintenance,
and solid waste services. (City Attorney/City Manager).

Mr. McLaughlin stated that this is a program that was initiated by the Department of the
Navy. This came down to all the regions and the installations that you shall have
intergovernmental support agreements with the local municipalities. He further stated
that our city is well ahead of other municipalities that have a naval air station with them
as we already do a tremendous amount of intergovernmental support which includes
water and wastewater. Through a contractor and series of meetings, it came up as to
what are other things that the city can do that the Navy could pay for that may be
cheaper than what they are paying for now, and without any interruptions to our
services capabilities to our citizens. Mr. McLaughlin further stated that a review of about
25 other items came down to three that the city felt it could do with its current capacity
garbage service, and road repairs which is only potholes as TXDOT will be doing the
paving inside installations.

Page 7 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



Mayor Fugate commented that he is for this, but there is a concern as the city’s street
department is stretched thin already and asked if the street department will only be
doing potholes.

Mr. MclLaughlin responded yes, but if the Navy calls and says that the
intergovernmental states that pothole repairs but they have some additional jobs for the
city, they would have to put in a task order. This will aliow staff to review the cost and
say if it can be done now or in the future or if it cannot be done. This doesn't mean that
the city is committed to every time they call or must go out there. This is an
intergovernmental support agreement and does not mean it is a mandatory agreement.

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve the resolution authorizing the
City Manager to enter an Intergovernmental Support Agreement between Naval
Air Station Kingsville and the City of Kingsville for road repair and maintenance,
lift station maintenance, and solid waste services, seconded by Commissioner
Hinojosa. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Alvarez,
Torres, Hinojosa, Fugate voting “FOR”.

9. Consider a resolution of the City of Kingsville, Texas finding that AEP Texas
Inc.'s application to amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factors to increase
distribution rates within the City should be denied; authorizing participation with
the cities served by AEP Texas; authorizing the hiring of legal counsel; finding
that the City's reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the
company; finding that the meeting at which this resolution is passed is open to
the public as required by law; requiring notice of this resolution to the company
and legal counsel. (City Attorney).

Ms. Alvarez stated that a few years back the legislature changed the rules with regards
to how electric utilities could increase rates. In between major rate case filings, the
utilities are allowed to do these distribution costs recovery factor filings and a few other
types of filings. When they do these filings the cities, such as us, that have original
jurisdiction can hire attorneys and consultants to review the filing to make sure that it is
followed procedurally and to have the experts analyze the necessity and can go back
and forth in contesting certain increases and things that they may have added to their
increase. Ms. Alvarez further stated that this will not cost the city or the taxpayers
anything as the way the law currently stands, the electric utilities must reimburse or pay
for the cost for the cities and experts that are retained to help defend or protect the
taxpayers.

Mayor Fugate asked if the legislature is trying to make cities pay for their attorneys.

Ms. Alvarez responded that in almost every session, the utility lobbyist tries to get that
carved out so that it no longer be reimbursed.

Mayor Fugate further asked if there is any legislation that Ms. Alvarez may be aware
of.

Ms. Alvarez responded yes, but it is her understanding that it is not moving forward
successfully. She further stated that if it went through before the context each
residential customer could see an increase of about $1.63 with a secondary charge of
$1.30 which would be for a writer mobile fee that is related to mobile generation units,
leasing, and operations.

Motion made by Commissioner Torres to approve the resolution of the City of
Kingsville, Texas finding that AEP Texas Inc.’s application to amend its
Distribution Cost Recovery Factors to increase distribution rates within the City

Page 8 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



should be denied; authorizing participation with the cities served by AEP Texas;
authorizing hiring of legal counsel; finding that the City’s reasonable rate case
expenses shall be reimbursed by the company; finding that the meeting at which
this resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice
of this resolution to the company and legal counsel, seconded by Commissioner
Alvarez. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Torres,
Hinojosa, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

10. Discuss potential Somerset Subdivision layout/plat. (City Manager).

Mr. McLaughlin stated that after numerous meetings with the city engineers, planning
department, and engineers from Somerset there have been a number of changes made
to the originals that came out during the town hall meeting. What will be shown is what
the planning department says meets all the requirements of the city ordinances. The
biggest changes are the green space which was added on the west side of the property
behind Tom Best. All of the rights-of-way are 60 feet now and have a radius of turns for
fire trucks at every corner. He further stated that the Fire Chief has looked at the
requirements for the length of the street to lay out the hose from where the fire hydrants
would be located, which met all the codes. The three entry and exit points have not
changed. He stated that there will be some very detailed drawings of the entrance off
of Brahma Bivd. to have the least impact on both property owners on each side of the
city's right-of-way, that have been built out into the right-of-way. ICE Engineering has
discussed when the Brahma Bivd ditch gets put in, the larger underground drainage
Brahma Blvd from General Cavazos to FM 1717 will be redone and have a full-length
center turn lane. The lot sizes meet what is stated in the ordinance. There is no waiver
and will not be asking for any variance for lot sizes. He stated that they did not put the
through street in, there is no through street that connects with Chandler Acres.

Mayor Fugate stated that it is his understanding that there won't be any utilities, roads,
or any connection between this subdivision and Chandler Acres.

Mr. McLaughlin responded that this was correct. He further stated that drainage will
flow south than east or west, depending on what side of the property is, and will be all
underground and will come out to the big creek on the south. There were about a dozen
comments and concerns that were written down which were addressed by Mr. Urban
from Urban Engineering. Mr. MclLaughlin further stated that there used to be 278 lots
proposed, but now there are 256, in order to make it all fit with the wider streets and
green space. He stated that this is a doable project for the developer who has every
right to develop his property.

Mayor Fugate asked if the staff has contacted TxDOT regarding Brahma Blvd and
General Cavazos.

Mr. McLaughlin responded that he has spoken with TXDOT and yes, the developer will
have to get driveway permits for all those cuts, to add to General Cavazos and Brahma
Bivd, which TXDOT will have to approve.

Mayor Fugate further asked about going to four lanes on Brahma Blvd. and General
Cavazos.

Mr. McLaughlin commented that General Cavazos is probably a more reasonable four-
lane road before Brahma. The way TXDOT works is that if you want a four-lane road
today, you will see it in about 20 years. He has already spoken to TXDOT and asked
for them to start thinking of a four-lane as it is a four-lane through town until you hit
General Cavazos, then it goes to a two-lane with a center turn lane halfway down. He

Page 9 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



stated that just to get the drawing submitted, Mr. Lucio has stated that it is a four-year
process to get the architects to draft it up.

Mayor Fugate commented that all the neighbors are concerned about this project and
asked if staff could post this so that they can see it as well.

Mr. McLaughlin stated that it will be posted on the City of Kingsville's website under the
Engineering tab.

Commissioner Hinojosa asked if there would be another public hearing so that it could
be mentioned what changes were made and allow the community to comment.

Ms. Alvarez stated that when the preliminary and final plat come before the
Commission, there will be a public hearing on both Planning & Zoning Commission and
City Commission meetings.

Mr. McLaughlin commented that this will be done in phases, he is not aware of how
many phases. Phase 1 has already been provided to the city for plat approval, which is
being reviewed now.

Mayor Fugate commented that it would be nice if there was a person to contact from
the neighborhood to let them know what the city is doing so that this individual could
get the word back to their neighbors.

Commissioner Torres commented that she is aware that the city can not tell the
developer who not to use but would there be a suggestion?

Mr. McLaughlin commented that a city cannot tell a developer who to use or not use in
the development of their property.

Mayor Fugate commented that the builder would have to meet all city codes and be
inspected by the city inspectors.

Commissioner Hinojosa asked if the city will be inspecting all the streets and curbs to
make sure they meet all city codes. Since the streets and curbs will be turned over to
the city, will the city have a say so on the inspection of those streets?
Mr. McLaughlin responded yes, as it is part of the review process.

Vi. Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting was
adjourned at 5:50 P.M.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, TRMC, CMC, City Secretary

Page 10 of 10 - APRIL 24, 2023



CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #1



Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-3935-8093

MEMO

Date: April 19, 2023

To: Mayor and City Commissioners

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting was held as scheduled this evening, April 19, 2023, with 4
members in attendance.

Members deliberated over the issue of granting approval for a replat Special Use Permit for Indoor
Recreational Use in C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S.
Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas to establish an indoor recreation facility. Letters were sent out to neighbors
and the City received no feedback. Commissioners, after deliberations, voted to approve the recommendation to
establish indoor recreation, the said property which is C2 (Retail). A recorded vote of all members present was

taken and Commissioners Steve Zamora, Larry Garcia, Rev. Idotha Battle and Debbie Tiffee. All agenda items
were voted “YES’.

The meeting was adjourned by about 6:15pm

Thank you.

bidyyel.

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



Planning and Development Services
410 W King e -
Uy ond

Kingsville, TX 78363 &ggmg%sgm@mﬁ%
e TR AR T

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: April 9, 2023

To: Planning and Zoning Commission Members

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The applicant approached the department because they wanted to use the existing property for indoor
recreational use. The proposal as presented to the department would involve creating recreatmnal activities to
serve the City of Kingsville. The property is currently zoned C2 — Retail.

Consequently, this application is being submitted for your consideration. The department has reviewed the
application and has found no adverse impact on the environment and the development complies with the
relevant codes and Ordinances but requires a “Special Use” permit. Therefore, it is recommended that you
consider the said application and approve same since this will improve internet use within the city of Kingsville.

Thank you.

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



CITY OF KINGSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING DIVISION
MASTER APPLICATION

PROPERTY INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Project Address_ | A\ \ § EV‘«\A wa Rived Nearest intersection

i
(Proposed) Subdivision Name__{nolve we, tot_< 90 |p  Block

Legal Description:___\Mnchvawd A 1oy 90 W Fastene |

Existing Zoning Designation € " Future Land Use Plan Designation SuP

OWNER/APPLICANT INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Applicant/Authorized Agent_ " Jwcols  Cran o Phone( 3% ‘77:"8" (o714 Fax

Email Address (for project correspondence only):_ Tefard 5.0 &) Guasl). coim

Mailing Address 22X )2 vioia 1oo0o] City_ﬁmgSV,‘/U State 7< ZipZd3e3

Property Owner _[4.2v vman  Olalenh.ochn Phone@CaI) 592-372° ppx

Email Address (for project correspondence only): _\V1/4-

Mailing Address (el Wlexwmelar Vovae City ﬁihjf\/(/(«? State__7Z __ Zip7J363

Select appropriate process for which approval is sought. Attach completed checklists with this application.

__Annexation Request No Fee __Preliminary Plat Fee Varies
__Administrative Appeal (ZBA) $250.00 __Final Plat Fee Varies
__Comp. Plan Amendment Request $250.00 __Minor Plat $100.00
__Re-zoning Request $250.00 __Re-plat $250.00
UP Request/Renewal $250.00 __Vacating Plat $50.00
__Zoning Variance Request (ZBA) $250.00 __Development Plat $100.00
__PUD Request, $250.00 __Subdivision Variance Request $25.00 ea

Please provide a basic description of the proposed project:
We life Jo of  Fosidt betbing beeslbel) /Soft ki pa i liby
o Per  yrdlle ool colals .

I hereby certify that | am the owner and /or duly authorized agent of the owner for the purposes of this
application. | further certify that | have read and examined this application and know the same to be
true and correct. If any of the information provided on this application is incorrect the permit or

Applicant’s Signature - —— ___Date; (O%—{ §-2e27

Property Owner's gnatU' . . . Date:__
Accepted by:_ sk, - . Date:_ B/, ?.0}’3




cuvuvjLpyjjer uL Lz o prurirmu blvu

11611

-S:\KW? QY‘S Cevche(

/ o E AilsieAve-

SR Y] ] ——

é\\,‘)ébf\é\cf\('(}\ :
Cevnveniene ;
XL 18239 l
[
i Clac.cdn
| Pecliing
i
|
i
|
19008 %
| 20305
;
10502
; ,
__/
r ™
Legend
| 1911 S Brahma Blvd
{ I 1911 S Brahma Bivd Buffer |
e Gtreets f 25719
(L] ownership Wgem
BISLANER, - N
of b
> o Lest Update: 5?:’../ 17/2023 n%srﬁé’ésg;?’é '3:%?3: @mﬁgﬁ’ ' 4othgng v gl TX 76368
Note: Bwnetihip i fabinled N ; . Hige! S
Wit thatr PROP 18's drd 2ong Cods, pesloN. ;?M‘émsﬁ PLUA%J Y Fas (gei)éésnﬂﬁéa%




Kingsville Retail Group, LP
Todd Routh
11701 Bee Caves Road, STE 262
Austin, TX 78738
#11611

Harbur & Harbur LP
Robert W Hartman
3279 FM 1540
Sandia, TX 78383
#18239

CAK Kingsville LLC
25047 Toutant Beauregard RD
San Antonio, TX 78255
#19008

McAllen Baptist Temple
2001 W Trenton RD
McAllen, TX 78504
#20305

Michael J Krueger
PO Box 1538
Kingsviltle, TX 78364
#10502



Account

Property ID: 18861

Geographic ID: 103000001001192

Type: Real

Property Use Code:

Property Use Description:

Location

Address: 1911 S BRAHMA BLVD
X

Neighborhood:

Neighborhood CD:

Owner

Name: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H

Mailing Address:

926 S 14TH ST, STE 103

KINGSVILLE, TX 78363

(+) Improvement Homesite Value:
(+) Improvement Non-Homesite Value:
(+) Land Homesite Value:

)

)

)
+) Land Non-Homesite Value:
+) Agricultural Market Valuation:
)

(
(
(+) Timber Market Valuation:

(=) Market Value:
(~) Ag or Timber Use Value Reduction:

(=) Appraised Value:
(—) HS Cap:

(=) Assessed Value:

+ 4+ 4+ o+ o+ o+

it

Legal Description:

Zoning:
Agent Code:

Mapsco:

Map ID:

Owner 1D:
% Ownership:

Exemptions:

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Tz Year: 2023 - Values not available

ANDREWS 1, LOT S 90' A, (FASTENAL)
c2

A3

30455
100.0000000000%

Ag / Timber Use Value
N/A
N/A



oy b NISURIY UAL - FIUPEIY LEEns

Owner: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H
% Ownership: 100.0000000000%
Total Value:  N/A

Entity Description Tax Rate Appraised Value Taxable Value Estimated Tax

GKL KLEBERG COUNTY N/A N/A . N/A N/A
Total Tax Rate: N/A

Taxes w/Current Exemptions: N/A

Taxes w/o Exemptions: N/A

Improvement #1: COMMERCIAL State Code: F1 Living Area: 5000.0 sqft Value: N/A

Class Exterior Year

Type Description cD wall Built SQFT

MA  MAIN AREA RS2L  EW4 1973 4000.0
ASP  ASPHALT (100%) * 2000 7980.0
MA  MAIN AREA WH2L 1973 1000.0

# Type Description Acres Sqft Eff Front  Eff Depth Market Value Prod. Value
1 FL FL 03616 15750.00 90.00  175.00 N/A N/A

Year Improvements Land Market Ag Valuation Appraised HS Cap Assessed |

2023 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2022 $78,030 $47,250 0 125,280 0 $125,280 |
2021 $86,230 $47,250 0 133,480 S0 $133,480 |
2020 $36,120 $23,625 0 59,745 $0  $59,745
2019 $35,945 $23,625 0 59,570 S0 $59,570 |
2018 $35,220 $23,625 0 58,845 S0 $58,845
2017 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 50 $60,155 |
2016 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155  $0  $60,155

2015 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155
2014 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155
2013 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2012 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155
2011 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155 |
2010 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155 |
2009 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155 |

e AT e A Y AR 8 e e

hitoa:/ioranaccess:rusautomation. aomildliantdb/Beatarty asavdacia iH=1 KRR RRIHSIA 3in



Aemy 6. 2023

o] i PUBLIC NOTICES & i PUBLIC NOTICES 8 i PUBLIC NOTICES ] ‘ PUBLIC NOTICES 8 ’ PUBLIC NOTICES

AWheL
Proscnibed by Sevretany of Suie
Section 127.096 Toxas Electhon Cudde
o7

PUBLIC NOUTICE OF TEST OF AUTOMATIC
TABULATING EQUIPMENT

on all measures.

Nutice i hereby given that the automativ tabulating equipment i will be used in the Ricardo Independent
Schaol District Bond Llection scheduled for Tuesday, May 6, 2023 will be wested on Wednesday |, April 12,
2023 at 8:30 a.m. by the County Clerk’s Oflice an the Rosit Galvan Aguifar Ext. Bldg, locuted at 729 E.
Yoakum Avenue Swect in Kingsville, (o ascertuin that it will accurately count the votes east for all offices and

& Salvador Somy Bareera 1)

& | puBLic NoTICES

pp has boen ises Permit by Patel &
made with Toxas Alcahol-  Thakor, LLC, dba Balo’s
lc B Commi: c ty Meat Market,

for Wine and Beer Retail-
er's panmit and a Food
and Beverage Certificate
(E8} by AC Cafe Corpo-
ration DBA Freddy's Cafe
at 5372 US-77 Kingsville,
Yexas 78363, Kleberg
County. Prasident and
Managar and Secretary of
sald corporation I3 Jose
Gamica.

Application has  been

AVISQ PUBLICO DE PRUEBA DE
EQUIPO DE TABULACION AUTOMATICO

tados los cargos y en todas lus inedidas,

Salvador Senny Barrera 1. Kleberg Coumy Clerk

Por In‘pmscmc s¢ notitica que ¢l vquipo de tbulicidn auonmitica que se wiilizard en la Eleccion Geneal y
Especial estd programado para ¢l Sibado 6 de Mayo de 2023 serd probado cl midreoles 12 de Abril de 2033
las 8:30 a.m. por la Offivina del Secretaria del Condado en ef Fdificio Rosa Galvin Aguila

Ext. ubicado en 729

made with Texas Alcohol-

to be located at 1102 E.
Yoakum Ave. Kingsville,
Kleberg County, Texas
78363, Officers of sald
LLC are Ram Thakor and
Suman Dava, Managers.

Application has been
mado with the Texas Al-
eohollc Baverage Com-
mission for a Mixed
Beverage by Domingo
Plnon Reyna Jr, dba
Double 7 Management

I B ga C .
for Wine and Mait Bever-
age Retafler’'s Off-Prom-

to be | dat 1414 N
14th Strest, Kingsviile,
Kleberg County, Texas.

L. Yuakum Avenue Streer en Kingsville, para asegurarse de que contani con precision los votos emitidos para

/s’ Sujvador Sonuy Barrem (11

Look no further.

The Clussifiets hwts the latest listings
uf hontes aud propertics for sule.

Classifieds

Satvador Sonny Barrera {11, Kleberg County Clerk

wwivkingsvlilerccond.com

| puBLic NoTICES & | pusuic NomicEs & | pusticNoices

& | rusucnorices &8 | susticnomces QB o | puBwic nomices

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Kingsville Independent Schaof District (“Kingsville ISD™) will receive sealed written

posals for d pational Therapy services at the Administration
Building, 207 N. 3rd St Kingsville, Texas 78363, unt!l 2:08 PM on Thursday, April
20th from interested providers, An REQ Packet contalning instructions for this
pracess will be available in the Administration Building, 207 N. 3rd St Kingsville,
Texas 78363, during regular business hours and at Kingsvillel$D.com. Al potential
bidders are encouraged to request a Bid Packet to ensure bidders are familiar with the
bid requirements, Sealed bids must be marked: “RFQ -~ OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY
SERVICES.” Submissiuns not received by the deadline specified herein and that do
not comply with the RFQ will ot be idered. All inquiries should
be directed to Dr. Peter Pitts, Chief Financial Officer, at (361) 592-3387. Kingsville
ISD reserves the right to accept or reject any ot all proposals submitted in the school
districts best interest.

Riviera ISD is accepting bids for a van. Please see https://www.rivieraisd.
us/o/riviera/page/request-for-proposals for the Request for Proposal
documents and mail all sealed bids to Riviera 1SD 203 Seahawk Drive
Riviera, Tx 78379.

8 | pusuic NoTicES & | puBLic NoTIcES & | pusLic NoTicES

Bishop CISD will hold a public hearing during it’s regular school
board meeting on Monday, Aptil 24, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the Luehrs
Junior High School Badger Den located at 717 E. 6th Street,
Bishop, Texas. The purpose of the public hearing is to present the
Texas Academic Performance Reports (TAPR) which combines
details of district and campus academic performance with financial
reports and information about staff, programs and demographics.

| rusticnorices N 8 | pusucnomices S 0| puauic noTices

PUBLIC NOTICE
KLEBERG COUNTY
HAZARD MITIGATION

Kieberg County will have an online survey from Aprif 6th to April 20th, in order to
gather information for their Hazard Mitigation Plan, Kleberg County and the partic-
ipating jurisdictions encourage residents to take the survey online at the County’ s
website. The survey’ s goal is to record public input for the plan draft Discussion wifl
include identifying natural hazards and hazard-related challenges facing the County in
order to begin developing a plan to preserv gths, resolve weak and meet
future mitigation goals. If there are any questions about the plan or survey, please call
the County at {361) 595-8585.

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The Planning & Zoning Ci of the City of King will hold a Public Hearing
Waednesday, April 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. wherein the Commission wifl discuss and/
or take action on the following ftams and at which time all Interested persons will be
heard:
Jacob C: q ing a Speclal Use Permit for Indoor Recre-
ational Use in C2 (Retall) at ANDREWS 1, LOT 5 '90 A, (FASTENAL) also known
as 1911 8. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The mealing will be held at Clty Hali, 400 Wesl King, In tha Helen Kleberg Groves
Community Room. If you hava any questlons about the items on the agenda, please
contact the Planning Department al (361) 585-8055.

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The City Commisston of tha City of Kingsvitie will hold a Public Hearing Monday, April
24, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. wherain the City Commission will discuss the considaration of
the follawing itern and al which time all interested persans will be heard:
Jacob Carmona, Appllcant; requesting a Special Use Pormit for Indoor Recre-
atienat Use In C2 (Retall) at ANDREWS 1, LOT § '90 A, (FASTENALY) also known
as 1911 §. Brahma Bivd,, Kingsville, TX.

The meeting will be held at City Hall, 400 Wesl King, Kingsvilla, Texas in the Helen
Kleberg Groves Community Roam, If you have any questions about the items on the

agenda, please contact the City Secretary at (361) 5958002,

- — raa] £ By B
X B ARAFRCELY
TexSCAN Weck of GENERATORS

April 2-8, 2023

ACREAGE

LAND FOR SALE. Hunting, recreational, retirement,
Hill Country, Trans Pecos regions in South Texas.
30-year fixed rate, owner financing, 3% down.
www.rnchenterprisesitd con. §00-876-9720.

ARRQWHEADS

INDLAN ARROWHEADS WANTED. Poiot Type:
Clovis, Yorma, Firstview & Eden. Must be old, muthentde
& unbroken, Absolute top dollar paid ~upto § figures
for one poinL |am a very scrivas high-ond collecion,
Call 979-218-3351.

Want te Tease an rea (snall screage) o find Indizn
arowbeads in the sand dunes of West Texas | will
pay up 1o five Agures for the right property. Call
979-218-3351.

AUCTION

Abgolsie Public Online As Lareda, Texas,
9 aum, Fel, April 14, 2023, 1768 FM 3338, 450+
i 800-654-82K0,

conventional tractors, vans & more.
wew. ylornndmartin.com.
EVENTS

Now Brauafels Area Car Club Swap Mest, April
21, 22 & 23, 2623, Comal County Fai d

Preparc for pawer outages foday with 3 GENERAC
bome standby generton $O Monoy Down + Low
Mouthly Payment Options. Request a FREE Quote, Calf
naw before the next power outage: 1-855-704-3579.

LEGAL ASSISTANCE
¢

Applying for Sacial Security Disability or Appealing
a Denied Claim? Call Bill Gordon & Assoc. Our

MEDICAL

Portable Oxygen Coacentrator May Be Covered
by Medicare! Rechim independence and mobility
with the compact design and tong-lasting bat-
tery of luogen One. Free information kit! Call
866-747-5383.

DENTAL INSURANCE from Phyxicians Mutual
Insurance Company, Coverage for 350 phus procedurcs,

401 E. Common Streel, New Brauafels.
www.newbraunfe eclub.com. Fres i public.
Gatcs open at § am.

Texas Ladics State Chili Championship Cook-
off. Sat,, April 152 10 229 p.m.. Mag Starcke

East, Chill, Craft and Food Vendors, Music,
Silent Auciian, Raffies, Family Fun! Judging
begins al 12:30 p.m. Slgn up to de 3 chili cook,
hitps:/f tseco. Iregistration.himl,

Jubscvibers ) ike

Make the Difference

in.com, 8§38-40(-5000,

il 1-455-901-0467
comAxpruss #6258
WANTED

Need Extrs Cash - { Buy RVs & Mobile Homes
=Teavel Traiters, Sth Wheels, Goosenecks, Bumper
Pulls. In Agy Area, Any Condition - Oli/New, Disty
or Clean! I PAY CASH. No Title - No Problem, we
can apply for onc. We go anywhero is Texas. ANR
Enterprises, 956-466-7001,

Texas Press Statewide Classified Network
221 Participating Texas Newspapers » Regional Ads
Start At $250 + Email ads@texaspress.com

NOTICE: Whik mox sdvertisess are reputable. we eaanol guarantee products or services sdvertived, We
wrpe readers W use caution and when in doubt, comact the Texas Atiomey Gencral at 800-621-0508 or the
Federal Trade Commission at BT7-FTC-HELR, The FTC web sile is www.fle.govibivop.




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE BY GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
PERMIT FOR INDOOR RECREATIONAL USE IN C2 (RETAIL DISTRICT)
AT ANDREWS 1, LOT S’90 A, (FASTENAL), ALSO KNOWN AS 1911 S.
BRAHMA  BLVD., KINGSVILLE, TEXAS; AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO ACCOUNT FOR ANY DEVIATIONS FROM
THE EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR
PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission has forwarded to the City Commission it's
reports and recommendations concerning the application of Jacob Carmona, applicant on
behalf of owner Herman Ohlenbusch, for amendment to the zoning map of the City of
Kingsville;

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned C2-Retail District and it is desired for the area
to be used as an indoor batting facility;

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter XV-Land Usage, Appendix A- Land Use
Categories states that in C2 a special use permit is required to have an indoor recreational
use (indoor batting facility); and

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville Code of Ordinances section 15-6-142 regulates special
use permits; and

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, public hearings were held on Wednesday,
April 19, 2023, during a meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission, and on Monday,
April 24, 2023, during a meeting of the City Commission, in the Helen Kleberg Groves
Community Room/Commission Chambers, at City Hall, in the City of Kingsville, during
which all interested persons were allowed to appear and be heard; and

WHEREAS, a majority of the Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to APPROVE, with
no abstentions, the requested special use permit; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that this amendment would best serve
public health, necessity, and convenience and the general welfare of the City of Kingsville
and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Thatthe Zoning Ordinance of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended and a
Special Use Permit is granted for an Indoor Recreational Facility (indoor batting facility) on



the premises known as 1911 S. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas, (Andrews 1, Lot S'90 A,
(Fastenal)), as more specifically describe on site plan attached as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. That the Special Use Permit granted in Section 1 of this Ordinance is subject
the following conditions:

1. ALLOWED USE: The only uses authorized by this Special Permit other than the
permitted “C2" Retail District use is as an Indoor Recreational use (indoor batting facility).

2. STATE LICENSE: The premises or operator will be licensed or registered by the
State of Texas, if needed, to have such a business.

3. TIME LIMIT: This Special Permit is good for the duration of the business from the
date of this ordinance unless the property is not being used for the purpose outlined in
Condition 1 or any other conditions have not been complied with.

4. SPECIAL CONDITION: The applicant shall obtain all required background checks
and business licenses. The applicant shall also cooperate with all annual fire safety, health,
and sanitation inspections, as required by the City of Kingsville and any other state agency,
and comply with any other laws or regulations regarding such business in order to maintain
compliance with state and city regulations for the indoor batting facility.

SECTION 3. That the official Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended to
reflect the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance made by Section 1 of this ordinance.

SECTION 4. That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas,
as amended from time to time, except as changed by this ordinance and any other
ordinances adopted on this date, remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5. That to the extent that this amendment to the Zoning Ordinance represents a
deviation from the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan is amended to conform
to the Zoning Ordinance, as amended by this ordinance.

SECTION 6. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby expressly repealed.

SECTION 7. That publication shall be made in the official publication of the City of
Kingsville as required by the City Charter of the City of Kingsville.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th _ day of April, 2023.
PASSED AND APPROVED on thisthe __8th dayof _ May  , 2023.

Effective Date: , 2023




THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



A-IUUJI/ LJMJJ\/I

UL L7400 JLD21UliLintil vivu

422

with thelf PROP ID's 8fid Zofts Code,

ANY
BesIgN, coNsTRUGTION; PLANN'NG‘ gUliBiNG,
ORANY OTHER PURPOBE.

11611
23999
| \
l
‘,
/ T L EAISieAVe - o e e e e ’ e
/ 5
5
£
<
[}
18239 f
|
1
i
i
1
1
{
é
i
13008
§ 20305
|
|
!
10502 3
i
i
-
/
r ™
Legend
1911 S Brahma Blvd
l l 1911 S Brahma Bivd Buffer
Streets 25719
] 0 50 100 200
[ ownership N NESEme— oot
TR ki e
. . BISOLAIMER:
Drawn By: G. AMAYA THIS MAP IS FOR %%SX‘C PURPOSES ONLY. ﬂ CI TY OF KI NGSV[ L L E
THE INFORMATION ON THIS SHEET MAY
2 B o Undate 37177202 O BTy oF KNG IS NOT Dt 7 ‘f ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
=R ast Update; 3/17/2023 RESPONSIBLE I THE WFORMATION an 400 W King Ave; Kingsville, TX 78363
Note: Dwneiship is latialad CONTAINED JEREIN 19 UB=D

Office: (361) 595-8007

> :ﬂ},‘” Fax: (361) 595:8064




AGENDA ITEM #2



City of Kingsville
Parks & Recreation Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark Mclaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Susan lvy, Director of Parks & Recreation

DATE: April 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Agenda Request —- Receipt of donations for Youth Pony League

Summary: We are requesting that Commission authorize the receipt of donations in the

amount of $11,900.00 received from sponsors and donors as shown on the attached supporting
document.

Background: Kingsville Parks Youth Pony League has solicited team sponsorships and general

donations from businesses to assist with uniforms, equipment and umpire and scorekeeping

expenses. To date we have collected $ 11,900.00.

Financial Impact: These donations will increase the Pony League Budget Division 4514 in the
amount of $11,900.00.

Recommendation: We ask that Commission authorize the receipt of up to $11,900.00
donations and approve the associated budget amendment needed to record the funds in the
Parks Youth Pony League Division (4514) budget.




SPONSOR TRACKER

GIRLS DIVISION

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
1 TEnbraid NMe Ay O A L ED.@\.,,.. “153G2.
2 TEcahind Nie I0b. & 21U GAe), ;waw 153G
L, Y . S ) Aoy GOt I e Y
3 Tledas tomimunidy FCU | 300 Ge 19 mw;,w n;.%yui Hots | 915445
. AUy Vost Lomdin] [ 20602 | stotim Lu {41776
5|l oy o Resl et CadMe Cp 2006 O Li | Bichmps U] L1770
w N (1 { e
z Diromous Donsl 1 206-9 |iady Hog's U 1104
7 TRiceide RandnaTeed | 30t 1L (Inaos Ulasxas
8 Tremi e ot @osted | 302 | Paspns (00U (g T11272
. COPUS Chinh _
0 £ i@% Pt by g??u 2" ke racpotes 17445
1 THice Deillingy, (o Eonl Do Kage 4] 1759
2 :
> . Vel4 .
3 rlda ns Express | z00 Yy Otinaers
. AR et 187" L@yt
A i J
5 oy Rm«@%x& bonasdd 300" Lol S ocdess
7 TIX FrtonPvpsay. DIFoves  208° (20 K glosums
: Dbsry frsor 200 100 Quices ocks g
9
0 .

ED N




SPONSOR TRACKER -
BOYS DIVISION

"t

i

1

oAl

~

s

f

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
(hasial Bey) Coubn Yellastip  Covrintopher Spreag el | 200 oo Nogueos 80 Gosaball | HIS33S
Leonacd SiWQ Nio Ro Design 200-® - RetSox b I0D2433.002

Cesar Silua Silva's Consdructiond 3002 luhdeSa 12 @ r:wmw?
T .... C ), RN oo
5:¢ Pacts Zon B2 ewo Voo Jorkee GO [ 1727
e RicEids Rar 5 n@oa..,ov.n Vl‘ ertraees 1O L =
Marcas Garzes Ondhe Spot @95« 300- 92 Asiros 2 U 415897
ing Ranch Ine. | 30000 © [ Astins uU 415 299
J0sepn Roacl QODWDDQUE& Taah ~ 30629 Nedles . dacideds foul 417703
= _ ,.QDV»D:QE Guitk Gale ]300 8" . | pvelinns (2 U LT O |
[ ((orvpwlle NS RUT Zop” HGu N?&»b\w
Unite! Bome Catel] 20000 - [Qstins 12 U YYy77/2
\..7:,,.\._.:._5 Pinenda 20000 Spicdioc 10U 14177LS
AMotneuw at Lo
WAomiiez” Wosdwoks 3-02 - | Vavalwags ¥ ¢ |91/
Clies W Chte [.336-6> - [ Biaves 3 1 77] )
e enance Sewigs 28BS [Rinves X i7i.7
exan STies "Hole {30603 Actrp = 10U 417119
ool B el Nevo Undl e 12060 - [ Culns 4 U Y1122
Triple £ mef.m\ \.o_m & Tleckic. uw%mﬂm% @asmﬁ lott Heggie> 4 ZM\.\NNP\N\
wDJ.ﬁC Q o)m..cb? 200.07 Pl Je 1

-

- ,Vm) i




1 D . B B “\ g

J \
Y Leg lne adnda | ns 2007 e A
e Wreld  chlol rens Pehat 3007 s Joen_oflirS

S py s Inflafalotes o

a0
i ﬂv v ,r\,.) .
e o, 2 !
Sant
4” .”. ,v, ,\.\.\\ \\o\M,q /\

Ul L]LD>



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND YOUTH PONY LEAGUE DONATIONS FOR UNIFORMS, EQUIPMENT, AND
UMPIRE AND SCOREKEEPER SERVICES.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#42

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 001 — General Fund
Revenues
4514 | Softball League | Donations-Softball 58003 $11,900
League

Expenditures

4514 | Softball League | Professional Services 31400 $11,900

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to accept and expend Youth Pony League
donations for uniforms, equipment, and umpire and scorekeeper services. Funding will come
from the donations received for the stated purpose.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such confiict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th day of April 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



REGULAR AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #3



ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023”; ENTERING INTO A PURCHASE AND
INVESTMENT LETTER AND A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT,;
AND APPROVING OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO




ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023,” ENTERING INTO A PURCHASE AND
INVESTMENT LETTER AND A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT;
AND APPROVING OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville (the “Issuer” or the “City”) deems it
advisable to issue Certificates of Obligation hereinafter described (the “Certificates”) for the purposes
specified in Section 3 hereof;

WHEREAS, the Certificates hereinafter authorized and designated are to be issued and delivered
for cash pursuant to the Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971, Section 271.041 et seq, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (the “Act™);

WHEREAS, the City Commission has heretofore, on March 13, 2023 passed a resolution
authorizing and directing the City Secretary to give notice of intention to issue the Certificates, which
notice has been duly published in the Kingsville Record, which is a newspaper of general circulation in
the City, in its issues of March 16, 2023, and March 23, 2023, the date of the publication being at least 45
days prior to the tentative date stated in the notice for passage of this Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City has received no petition from the qualified electors of the City protesting
the issuance of the Certificates; and

WHEREAS, it is hereby determined that the terms of the Certificates as hereafter provided are the
most reasonably available and advantageous and are in the best interest of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILE, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Authorization of the Certificates. There is hereby authorized to be issued and
delivered pursuant to the Act, a series of certificates of obligation of the City, to be known as “CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023” (the “Certificates”), in the principal amount of $6,100,000, payable from
ad valorem taxes, within the limits prescribed by law, as described in and for the purposes described in
the Form of Definitive Certificates contained in Section 3 hereof.

Section 2. Date, Denominations, Numbers, and Maturities of and Interest on the
Certificates. The Certificates shall be dated as of May 1, 2023, in denominations of $100,000 or any
integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, shall be numbered I-1 for the Initial Certificate, and shall be
issued as one term certificate numbered R-1 for the definitive Certificate, and shall mature on August 1,
2038 with mandatory redemption payments payable as follows:

Payment Date  Principal Installments ($) Interest Rate (%)

August 1, 2024 100,000 4.500
August 1, 2025 200,000 4.500
August 1, 2026 300,000 4.500
August 1, 2027 355,000 4.500
August 1, 2028 370,000 4,500

August 1, 2029 390,000 4.500



Payment Date  Principal Installments ($) Interest Rate (%)

August 1, 2030 405,000 4.500
August 1, 2031 425,000 4.500
August 1, 2032 445,000 4.500
August 1, 2033 465,000 4.500
August 1, 2034 485,000 4.500
August 1, 2035 505,000 4.500
August 1, 2036 530,000 4.500
August 1, 2037 550,000 4.500
August 1, 2038 575,600 4.500

The Certificates shall bear interest from the date of initial delivery of the Certificates at the
interest rates provided above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and
interest shall be payable on August 1, 2023, and on each February 1 and August 1 thereafter and on the
maturity date.

Section 3. General Characteristics and Form of the Certificates. The Certificates shall be
issued, shall be payable, may be redeemable prior to their scheduled maturities, shall have the
characteristics, and shall be executed and sealed, all as provided and in the manner indicated in the form
set forth below. The Form of Definitive Certificates, the Form of Initial Certificate, the Form of the
Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts, the Form of the Authentication
Certificate, and the Form of Assignment, which shall be, respectively, substantially as follows, with
necessary and appropriate variations, omissions, and insertions as permitted or required by this
Ordinance, and the definitions contained within each such form shall apply solely to such form.

FORM OF DEFINITIVE CERTIFICATES

United States of America
State of Texas

NUMBER DENOMINATION
R-1 $6,100,000
REGISTERED REGISTERED

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023

Dated Delivery Maturity Interest
Date Date Date Rate (%)
May 1, 2023 May 31, 2023 August 1, 2038 4.500
REGISTERED OWNER: ZMFU II, INC.
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:; SIX MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100

DOLLARS ($6,100,000.00)
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “City”), a body corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of Texas, for value received, promises to pay to the Registered Owner, specified above, or

registered assignees (the “Owner”), on the Maturity Date, specified above, through Zions Bancorporation,

2-



N.A., Houston, Texas or its successor (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), the Principal Amount, specified
above, in lawful money of the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate,
specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, from the Delivery
Date, specified above. Interest on this Certificate is payable by check payable on August 1, 2023, and
each February 1 and August 1 thereafter and on the Maturity Date, mailed to the Owner of record as
shown on the books of registration (the “Register”) kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as of the date
which is the 15th day of the month next preceding the interest payment date (the “Record Date”), or in
such other manner as may be acceptable to the Owner and the Paying Agent/Registrar. In the event of a
non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for
such payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when
funds for the payment thereof have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and
of the scheduled payment date of the past due payment (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15
calendar days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special
Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the Owner appearing on
the Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such
notice.

THIS CERTIFICATE is one of a series of Certificates (the “Certificates™) dated as of the Dated
Date, specified above, of like designation, date, and tenor, except as to number, interest rate,
denomination, and maturity issued pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the City Commission of the City
on May 8, 2023 (the “Ordinance”), in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,100,000 for the
purpose of purchasing and acquiring certain City-owned public property, including (1) improvements to
the water and sewer system including water meters and related technology, and (2) payment of
contractual obligations for professional services in connection therewith (to wit: consulting, engineering,
financial advisory, and legal).

THE CERTIFICATES are issued pursuant to the Ordinance whereunder the City Commission of
the City covenants to levy a continuing, direct, annual ad valorem tax on taxable property within the City,
within the limits prescribed by law, for each year while any part of the Certificates are considered
outstanding under the provisions of the Ordinance, in a sufficient amount to pay interest on each
Certificate as it becomes due, to provide a sinking fund for the payment of the principal of the Certificates
when due, and to pay the expenses of assessing and collecting such tax, and this Certificate is additionally
secured by and payable from a subordinate pledge of certain “Net Revenues” of the Issuer’s Waterworks
and Sewer System (the “System™), which amount is payable from the revenues remaining after payment
of all operation and maintenance expenses of the System, and all debt service, reserve, and other
requirements in connection with all of the Issuer’s revenue bonds or other obligations (now or hereafter
outstanding) which are payable from all or any part of the “Net Revenues” of the System. Reference is
hereby made to the Ordinance for provisions with respect to the custody and application of the City’s
funds, remedies in the event of a default hereunder or thereunder, and the other rights of the Registered
Owner. By acceptance of this Certificate, the Registered Owner consents to all of the provisions of the
Ordinance, a certified copy of which is on file in the office of the City Secretary.

THE CERTIFICATES shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, at a redemption
price equal to the principal amount thereof and any accrued interest thereon to the date set for redemption,
in each of the years and in the amounts set forth below:

Year Principal Amount ($)
August 1, 2024 100,000
August 1, 2025 200,000
August 1, 2026 300,000
August 1, 2027 355,000

-3-



Year Principal Amount ($)

August 1, 2028 370,000
August 1, 2029 390,000
August 1, 2030 405,000
August 1, 2031 425,000
August 1, 2032 445,000
August 1, 2033 465,000
August 1, 2034 485,000
August 1, 2035 505,000
August 1, 2036 530,000
August 1, 2037 550,000
August 1, 2038 575,000

THE CERTIFICATES maturing on or after August 1, 2026 are subject to optional redemption on
August 1, 2025 or any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof, or any date thereafter at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail,
first-class postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption, to the Owner
of each Certificate, or portion thereof to be redeemed, at its address as it appeared on the Register on the
close of business or the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice; provided, however,
that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending or mailing
thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the redemption of any
Certificate. By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the City with the
Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required redemption price for this Certificate or the portion
hereof which is to be so redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. If such
notice of redemption is given, and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this
Certificate, or the portion thereof which is to be so redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed
prior to its scheduled maturity, and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall
not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Owner to receive the redemption price
plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds
provided for such payment. Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the
Ordinance.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS TRANSFERABLE OR EXCHANGEABLE only upon presentation and
surrender at the principal corporate office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. If this Certificate is being
transferred, it shall be duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
Owner, or his authorized representative, subject to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. Any
exchange of a Certificate shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. The Paying
Agent/Registrar is not required to accept any Certificate for transfer or exchange during the 45 days prior
to the date fixed for the redemption of such Certificate; provided, however, that such limitation of transfer
shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the unredeemed balance of a Certificate called for
redemption in part. The Owner of this Certificate shall be deemed and treated by the City and the Paying
Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and discharge of
liability upon this Certificate to the extent of such payment, and the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.



IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates is changed by the City, resigns,
or otherwise ceases to act as such, the City has covenanted in the Ordinance that it promptly will appoint
a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the
Owners.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, COVENANTED, AND REPRESENTED that all acts, conditions,
and things necessary to be done precedent to the issuance of the Certificates in order to render the same
legal, valid, and binding obligations of the City have happened and have been accomplished and
performed in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by law; that provision has been made
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates by the levy of a continuing, direct,
annual ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the City, within the limit prescribed by law, and
from the above described pledge of the Net Revenues of the System; and that issuance of the Certificates
does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

BY BECOMING the Owner of this Certificate, the Owner thereby acknowledges all of the terms
and provisions of the Ordinance, agrees to be bound by such terms and provisions, and agrees that the
terms and provisions of this Certificate and the Ordinance constitute a contract between each Owner and
the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate has been signed with the manual or facsimile
signature of the Mayor of the City, countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the City
Secretary of the City, and the official seal of the City Commission of the City has been duly impressed, or
placed in facsimile, on this Certificate.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

/s/ Mary Valenzuela /s/ Sam R. Fugate
City Secretary Mayor
(CITY SEAL)

* * *

FORM OF INITIAL CERTIFICATE

The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth above for the Form of Definitive Certificates, except
the following shall replace the heading and the first paragraph:

United States of America
State of Texas
NO. I-1 $6,100,000

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023

Dated Date: MAY 1, 2023
Delivery Date: MAY 31, 2023
Maturity Date: AUGUST 1, 2038

-5-



Interest Rate: 4.500%
Registered Owner: ZMFU 11, INC.

Principal Amount: SIX MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS
(86,100,000)

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “City”), a body corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the
order of the Registered Owner, specified above, or the registered assignees thereof (the “Owner”), the
Principal Amount, specified above.

INTEREST on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Delivery Date of this Certificate,
specified above, or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly
provided for until the Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been made or duly
provided for shall be paid computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest
being payable on August 1, 2023 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter and on the Maturity Date.

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Certificate are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The final payment of principal of this
Certificate shall be paid to the Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate at final
maturity, at the designated payment office of Zions Bancorporation, N.A., Houston, Texas which is the
“Paying Agent/Registrar” for this Certificate. The payment of principal installments and interest on this
Certificate shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Owner hereof as shown by the Register at
the close of business on the Record Date by check drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable
solely from, funds of the City required to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose
as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States
mail, postage prepaid, on each such payment date, to the Owner hereof at its address as it appears on the
Register, as hereinafter described. The record date (“Record Date”) for payments hereon means the 15th
day of the month preceding a scheduled payment. In the event of a non-payment of interest on a
scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such payment (a “Special
Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment
thereof have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due payment (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 calendar days after
the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special Record Date by
United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the Owner at the close of business on the
last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. The City covenants with the Owner
that no later than each principal installment payment date and interest payment date for this Certificate it
will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar the amounts required to provide for the payment, in
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Certificate, when due, in the manner
set forth in the Ordinance defined below.



FORM OF AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

This Certificate is one of the Certificates described in and delivered pursuant to the within-
mentioned Ordinance, and this Certificate has been issued in conversion of and exchange for, or
replacement of, a Certificate, Certificates, or a portion of a Certificate or Certificates of an issue which
was originally approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Zions Bancorporation, N.A.
Houston, Texas

Paying Agent/Registrar

Registration Date: By

Authorized Signature

FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS*
*Attach to Initial Certificate in lieu of Authentication Certificate

COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT there is on file and of record in my office a certificate to the effect
that the Attorney General of the State of Texas has examined and finds that this Certificate has been
issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and is a valid and binding
obligation of the City of Kingsville, Texas, and further that this Certificate has been registered this day by
me.

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas

* * *

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

/ / (Please insert
Social Security or Taxpayer (Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code, of Transferee)
Identification Number of Transferee)

the within Certificate and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
attorney to register the transfer of the within Certificate on the books kept
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

-



NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a NOTICE: The signature above must correspond
member firm of the New York Stock Exchange ora with the name of the Owner as it appears upon the

commercial bank or trust company. front of this Certificate in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever.

The following abbreviations, when used in the Assignment above or on the face of the within Certificate,
shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common
UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - Custodian
(Cust) (Minor)
Under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act

(State)
Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the list above.
[END OF FORMS]

Section 4. Definitions. In addition to other terms defined herein, the following terms, as used in
this Ordinance, shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the context thereof specifically indicates
otherwise:

“Additional Obligations” means such other bonds, certificates, or other evidences of indebtedness
as may hereafter be authorized, payable from and equally secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues.

“Bond Counsel” means Winstead PC, or such other firm of nationally recognized bond counsel
appointed by the City.

“Certificates” means the Certificates authorized by this Ordinance.

“Governmental Obligations” means (i) Direct noncallable obligations of the United States,
including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America;
(ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations that
are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date the
goveming body of the issuer adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding
bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than
“AAA” or its equivalent; (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or
other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of
the issuer adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its
equivalent; or (iv) any other obligations authorized to defease the Certificates under Chapter 1207 of the
Texas Government Code.

“Initial Purchaser” meauns, the initial purchaser identified in Section 3.

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means that certain fund created pursuant to Section 10 of this
Ordinance.

“Net Revenues” means the gross revenues of the System less the expense of operation and
maintenance thereof, including all salaries, labor, materials, interest, repairs, and extensions necessary to
render efficient service; provided, however, that only such repairs and extensions as in the judgment of
the City Commission, reasonably and fairly exercised, are necessary to keep the System in operation and

-8-



render adequate service to the City and the inhabitants thereof, or such as might be necessary to meet
some physical accident or condition which would otherwise impair the security of any bonds payable
from and secured by a lien on the Net Revenues of the System shall be deducted in determining “Net
Revenues.”

“Ordinance” means this “Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of “City of Kingsville, Texas
Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Certificates of Obligation, Series 2023; Entering Into A Purchase
and Investment Letter And A Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement And Approving Other Matters Relating
Thereto.”

“Owner” means the owner of the Certificates as shown on the Register.

“Parity Bonds” means the City’s bonds, certificates, or other obligations payable from a first lien
on the Net Revenues, whether such Parity Bonds are now outstanding or issued hereafter.

“Parity Bonds Ordinances” means the ordinances authorizing the City’s bonds payable from a
first lien on the Net Revenues, whether now outstanding or issued hereafter, and any additional bonds as
defined therein.

“Purchase and Investment Letter” means the Purchase and Investment Letter between the City
and the Initial Purchaser.

“Register” means the books or records of the register or transfer of the Books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar,

Section 5. Paying Agent/Registrar. (a) The City shall keep or cause to be kept at the
designated payment office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other bank, trust company, financial
institution, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve and perform duties of and
services of Paying Agent/Registrar, named in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (¢) of this
section, the Register, and the City hereby appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer
agent to keep such books or records and make such transfers and registrations under such reasonable
regulations as the City and Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall
make such transfers and registrations as herein provided. It shall be the duty of the Paying
Agent/Registrar to obtain from the Owner and record in the Registration Books the address of such
Owner of each Certificate to which payments with respect to the Certificates shall be mailed, as herein
provided. The City or its designee shall have the right to inspect the Register during regular business
hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Register
confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity.

(b) The City hereby further appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for
paying the principal of and interest on the Certificates, and to act as its agent to exchange or replace
Certificates, all as provided in this Ordinance. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of
all payments made by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Certificates, and of all
exchanges and replacements of such Certificates, as provided in this Ordinance. The Mayor is authorized
to enter into the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, on
behalf of the City.

(c) The City covenants with the Owners that at all times while the Certificates are outstanding
the City will provide a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other
entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and perform the duties and services of Paying
Agent/Registrar, to act as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates under
this Ordinance, and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity. The City reserves the right to, and
may, at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 45 days written notice to the
Paying Agent/Registrar. In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or its

9.



successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the
City covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified national or state banking
institution to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this Ordinance, which banking institution shall be a
corporation organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or of any state,
authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to supervision or examination by federal or
state authority, and whose qualifications are substantially similar to the previous Paying Agent/Registrar.
Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly
transfer and deliver the Register (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records
relating to the Certificates, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the City.
Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the City promptly will cause a written notice thereof to
be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner of the Certificates, by United States mail,
postage prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. By
accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have
agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance, and a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be delivered to
each Paying Agent/Registrar,

Section 6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. (a) Registration of each Certificate may be
transferred on the Register only upon presentation and surrender of such Certificate to the Paying
Agent/Registrar for transfer of registration and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
evidencing the assignment of the Certificate, or any portion thereof in denominations of $100,000 or any
integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees thereof, and the right of such assignee or
assignees to have the Certificate or any such portion thereof registered in the name of such assignee or
assignees. Upon the assignment and transfer of any Certificate or any portion thereof, a new substitute
Certificate or Certificates shall be issued in exchange therefor in the manner herein provided.

(b) The entity in whose name any Certificate shall be registered in the Register at any time shall
be treated as the absolute Owner thereof for all purposes of this Ordinance, whether or not such
Certificate shall be overdue, and the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any
notice to the contrary unless otherwise required by law; and payment of, or on account of, the principal
of, premium, if any, and interest on any such Certificate shall be made only to such Owner. All such
payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Certificate to the
extent of the sum or sums so paid.

(c) Each Certificate may be exchanged for fully registered certificates in the manner set forth
herein. Each Certificate issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance, to the extent of the unpaid or
unredeemed principal balance or principal amount thereof, may, upon surrender of such Certificate at the
principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with a written request therefor
duly executed by the Owner or the assignee or assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys
or representatives, with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, at the option of
the Owner or such assignee or assignees, as appropriate, be exchanged for fully registered Certificates,
without interest coupons, in the form prescribed in the Form of Definitive Certificates set forth in this
Ordinance, in the denomination of $100,000, or any integral multiple of $5,000 (subject to the
requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute Certificate shall have a single stated maturity date), as
requested in writing by such Owner or such assignee or assignees, in an aggregate principal amount equal
to the unpaid or unredeemed principal amount of any bond or bonds so surrendered, and payable to the
appropriate Owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be. If a portion of any Certificate shall be
redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity as provided herein, a substitute bond or bonds having the same
maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in the denomination or denominations of $100,000 or any
integral multiple of $5,000 at the request of the Owner, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the
unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Owner upon surrender thereof for cancellation.

(d) If any Certificate or portion thereof is assigned and transferred, each Certificate issued in
exchange therefor shall have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as the

-10-



Certificate for which it is being exchanged. Each substitute certificate shall bear a letter and/or number to
distinguish it from each other Certificate. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall exchange or replace
Certificates as provided herein, and each fully registered certificate delivered in exchange for or
replacement of any Certificate- or portion thereof as permitted or required by any provision of this
Ordinance shall constitute one of the Certificates for all purposes of this Ordinance, and may again be
exchanged or replaced. It is specifically provided, however, that any Certificate delivered in exchange for
or replacement of another Certificate prior to the first scheduled interest payment date on the Certificates
(as stated on the face thercof) shall be dated the same date as such Certificate, but each substitute
Certificate so delivered on or after such first scheduled interest payment date shall be dated as of the
interest payment date preceding the date on which such substitute certificate is delivered, unless such
Certificate is delivered on an interest payment date, in which case it shall be dated as of such date of
delivery; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Certificate the interest on the
Certificate for which it is being exchanged has not been paid, then such Certificate shall be dated as of the
date to which such interest has been paid in full. On each substitute Certificate issued in exchange for or
replacement of any Certificate or Certificates issued under this Ordinance there shall be printed thereon a
Paying Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, in the form hereinafter set forth. An authorized
representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Certificate, date such
by dating the Authentication Certificate in the manner set forth above, and manually sign such Certificate,
and no such Certificate shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless such Certificate is so executed.
The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all Certificates surrendered for exchange or
replacement.

(e) No additional ordinances or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the City Commission of
the City or any other body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing exchange or replacement of any
Certificate or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing, execution,
and delivery of the substitute Certificates in the manner prescribed herein, and said Certificates shall be
printed or typed in accordance with Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended, the duty of such
exchange or replacement of certificates as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar,
and upon the execution of the aforementioned Paying Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, the
exchanged or replaced Certificate shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and
with the same effect as the Certificates which originally were delivered pursuant to this Ordinance,
approved by the Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

(f) The Paying Agent/Registrar is not required to accept any Certificate for transfer or exchange
during the 45 days prior to the date fixed for the redemption of such Certificate; provided, however, that
such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the unredeemed balance
of a Certificate called for redemption in part.

(g) All Certificates issued in exchange or replacement of any other Certificate or portion thereof,
(1) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on
such Certificates to be payable only to the Owners thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled
maturities, (iii) may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be exchanged for other Certificates, (v) shall
have the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed and sealed, and (vii) the principal of and interest on the
Certificates shall be payable, all as provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the Form of
Certificates set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance.

(h) The City shall pay all of the Paying Agent/Registrar’s reasonable and customary fees and
charges for making transfers, conversions, and exchanges of the Certificates in accordance with an
agreement between the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, but the Owner of any Certificate requesting
such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto.
In addition, the City hereby covenants with the Owners that it will pay the reasonable and standard or
customary fees and charges of the Paying Agent/Registrar for its services with respect to the payment of
the principal of and interest on the Certificates, when due.

-11-



Section 7. Lost, Stolen, Destroyed, Damaged, or Mutilated Certificates; Destruction of Paid
Certificates. (a) Replacement Certificates. In the event any outstanding Certificate shall become lost,
stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated, at the request of the Owner thereof, the City shall cause to be
executed, registered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, and delivered a substitute Certificate of like date and
tenor, in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of such mutilated or damaged Certificate, or
in lieu of and substitution for such Certificate, lost, stolen, or destroyed, subject to the provisions of
subsections (b), (¢), (d), and (e) of this Section.

(b) Application and Indemnity. Application for exchange and substitution of lost, stolen,
destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Certificates shall be made to the City. In every case the applicant for a
substitute Certificate shall furnish to the City such deposit for fees and costs as may be required by the
City to find, save, and keep it and the Paying Agent/Registrar harmless from liability. In every case of
loss, theft, or destruction of a Certificate, the applicant shall also furnish to the City indemnity to the
City’s satisfaction and shall file with the City evidence to the City’s satisfaction of the loss, theft, or
destruction and of the ownership of such Certificate. In every case of damage or mutilation of a
Certificate, the applicant shall surrender the Certificate so damaged or mutilated to the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(c) Matured Certificates. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event
any such Certificate shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in payment
of the principal of or interest on the Certificates, the City may authorize the payment of the same (without
surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Certificate) instead of issuing a substitute
Certificate, if any, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section.

(d) Expenses of Issuance. Upon the issuance of any substitute Certificate, the City may charge
the Owner of such Certificate with all fees and costs incurred in connection therewith. Every substitute
Certificate issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Certificate is lost,
stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated shall constitute a contractual obligation of the City, whether or
not the lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, or mutilated Certificate shall be found at any time, or be
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and
proportionately with any and all other Certificates duly issued under this Ordinance.

(e) Authority to Issue Substitute Certificates. This Ordinance shall constitute sufficient authority
for the issuance of any such substitute Certificate without necessity of further action by the City or any
other body or person, and the issuance of such substitute Certificates is hereby authorized,
notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance.

(f) Destruction of Paid Certificates. At any time subsequent to the payment thereof, the Paying
Agent/Registrar is authorized to cancel and destroy any Certificates duly paid, and promptly after any
such destruction, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall furnish to the City a certificate evidencing such
destruction.

Section 8. Book-Entry-Only System. (a) The Initial Purchaser will take physical delivery of
the Certificates initially. If it is decided to use a book-entry system, the definitive Certificates shall be
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee), as Owner of the Certificates, and
held in custody of DTC. A single certificate will be issued and delivered to DTC for each maturity of the
Certificates. Beneficial owners of definitive Certificates will not receive physical delivery of Certificate
certificates except as provided hereinafter. For so long as DTC shall continue to serve as securities
depository for the Certificates as provided herein, all transfers of beneficial ownership interest will be
made by book-entry only, and no investor or other person purchasing, selling, or otherwise transferring
beneficial ownership of Certificates is to receive, hold, or deliver any certificate. No person shall acquire
or hold any beneficial interest in any Certificate representing the entire principal amount of such
Certificate.

-12-



(b) Replacement definitive Certificates may be issued directly to beneficial owners of
Certificates other than DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines not to continue
to act as securities depository for the Certificates (which determination shall become effective no less
than 90 days after written notice to such effect to the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar); or (ii) the City
has advised DTC of its determination (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and beneficial
owners of the Certificates) that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties as securities depository for the
Certificates; or (iii) the City has determined (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and the
beneficial owners of the Certificates) that the interests of the beneficial owners of the Certificates might
be adversely affected if such book-entry only system of transfer is continued. Upon occurrence of any
event described in (i) or (ii) above, the City shall use its best efforts to attempt to locate another qualified
securities depository. If the City fails to locate another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the
City shall cause to be executed, authenticated, and delivered replacement Certificates, in certificate form,
to the DTC participants having an interest in the Certificates as shown on the records of DTC provided by
DTC to the City. In the event that the City makes the determination described in (iii) above and has made
provisions to notify the beneficial owners of Certificates of such determination by mailing an appropriate
notice to DTC, it shall cause to be issued replacement Certificates in certificate form to the DTC
participants having an interest in the Certificates as shown on the records of DTC provided by DTC to the
City. The City undertakes no obligation to make any investigation to determine the occurrence of any
events that would permit the City to make any determination described in (ii) or (iii) above.

(c) Whenever, during the term of the Certificates, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined
by a book entry at DTC, the requirements in this Ordinance of holding, delivering, or transferring
Certificates shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate person or entity to meet the requirement
of DTC as to registering or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect.

If at any time, DTC ceases to own the Certificates, all references herein to DTC shall be of no
further force or effect. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as
any Certificate is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to
principal of and interest on such Certificate and all notices with respect to such Certificate shall be made
and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representations Letter.

Section 9. City Funds. The City hereby confirms the establishment of the following funds of the
City at a depository of the City:

Interest and Sinking Fund, Tax Levy. and Pledge of Revenues. A special “City of Kingsville,
Texas Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2022 Interest

and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund™) is hereby created and shall be established and
maintained by the City at an official depository bank of the City. The Interest and Sinking Fund shall be
kept separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Issuer, and shall be used only for paying
the interest on and principal of the Certificates. The net proceeds of all ad valorem taxes levied and
collected for and on account of the Certificates shall be deposited, as collected, to the credit of the Interest
and Sinking Fund.

During each year while any of the Certificates or interest thereon are outstanding and unpaid, the
City Commission shall compute and ascertain a rate and amount of ad valorem tax which will be
sufficient to raise and produce the money required to pay the interest on the Certificates as such interest
comes due, and to provide and maintain a sinking fund adequate to pay the principal thereof as such
principal matures (but never less than 2% of the original principal amount of the Certificates as a sinking
fund each year); and the tax shall be based on the latest approved tax rolls of the City, with full
allowances being made for tax delinquencies and the cost of tax collection. The rate and amount of ad
valorem tax is hereby levied, and is hereby ordered to be levied, against all taxable property in the City
for each year while any of the Certificates or interest thereon are outstanding and unpaid, and the tax shall
be assessed and collected each year and deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund. The ad
valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of the Certificates, as

-13-



such interest comes due and such principal matures, are hereby pledged irrevocably for such payment,
within the limit prescribed by law.

The Certificates additionally shall be payable from and secured by a subordinate lien (to all
“Parity Bonds” now outstanding or hereafter issued) on and pledge of certain of the Net Revenues
pursuant to Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code, as amended. The City shall deposit such pledged
Net Revenues to the credit of the Certificate Fund created pursuant to this Section. Notwithstanding the
requirements of this Section, if Net Revenues are actually on deposit in the Certificate Fund in advance of
the time when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then the amount of taxes which
otherwise would have been required to be levied pursuant to this Section may be reduced to the extent and
by the amount of the Net Revenues then on deposit in the Certificate Fund or budgeted for deposit
therein.

The City reserves the right to issue, for any lawful purpose at any time, in one or more
installments, bonds, certificates of obligation, and other obligations of any kind payable in whole or in
part from, and secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues that may be prior and superior in right to, on a
parity with, or junior and subordinate to the subordinate pledge of the Net Revenues securing the
Certificates.

The City hereby covenants and agrees that, subject to any prior lien on and pledge of the Net
Revenues of the System to the payment and security of any Parity Bonds, the Net Revenues are hereby
irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates and the pledge of
Net Revenues herein made for the payment of the Certificates shall constitute a lien on the Net Revenues
in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof and be valid and binding without any physical
delivery thereof or further act by the City.

Project Fund. A special “City of Kingsville, Texas Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2023 Project Fund” (the “Project Fund™) is hereby created and shall be
established and maintained by the City at an official depository bank of the City. The Project Fund is the
fund into which the net proceeds of the Certificates shall be deposited. Money in the Project Fund shall
be used to pay the costs necessary or appropriate to accomplish the purposes for which the Certificates are
issued.

Section 10. Investments and Security. (a) Investment of Funds. The City may place money in
any fund created by this Ordinance in time or demand deposits or invest such money as authorized by law
at the time of such deposit; provided, however, that the City hereby covenants that the proceeds of the
sale of the Certificates will be used as soon as practicable for the purposes for which the Certificates are

issued. Obligations purchased as an investment of money in a fund shalil be deemed to be a part of such
fund.

(b) Amounts Received from Investments. Except as otherwise provided by law, amounts
received from the investment of the Project Fund may be retained in such fund or deposited to the Interest
and Sinking Fund as determined by the City Commission. Any amounts received from the investment of
the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(c) Security for Funds. All funds created by this Ordinance shall be secured in the manner and to
the fullest extent required by law for the security of funds of the City.

Section 11. Remittances to Paying Agent/Registrar. It shall be the duty of the Finance
Director of the City without any further direction by the City to make remittances to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of the amounts necessary on each occasion to pay the installment of interest or the
installment of principal and interest due on the next succeeding interest payment date. Said remittances
shall be made not less than five days prior to such scheduled date of interest or interest and principal
payments.

-14-



Section 12. Remedies in Event of Default. In addition to all the rights and remedies provided
by the laws of the State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees particularly that in the event the City
(a) defaults in the payment of principal of or interest on any of the Certificates when due, or (b) fails to
make the payments required to be made to any fund created hereunder in the amounts and at the times
required, or (c) defaults in the observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, or
obligations set forth in this Ordinance, the Owner(s) of any of the Certificates shall be entitled to a writ of
mandamus issued by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the City and other officers of
the City to observe and perform any covenant, obligation, or condition prescribed in this Ordinance; no
delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such power
or right or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and every such
right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. The
specific remedies herein provided shall be cumulative of any other available remedies and the
specification of such shall not be deemed to be exclusive.

Section 13. Covenants of the City. (a) General Covenants. The City covenants and represents

that:

(1) The City is a duly created and existing political subdivision of the State of Texas and is
duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to create and issue the Certificates; all action on
its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly and effectively taken; and the
Certificates in the hands of the Owners are and will be valid and enforceable obligations of the City in
accordance with their terms;

(i1} The Certificates shall be ratably secured in such manner that no one Certificate shall have
preference over other Certificates; and

(iii) The City will provide the Initial Purchaser with their audited financial statements within
180 days of the City’s fiscal year end in each year that the Certificate is outstanding.

(b) Specific Covenants. The City covenants and represents that, while the Certificates are
outstanding and unpaid, it will:

(i) Levy an ad valorem tax that will be sufficient to provide funds to pay the current interest
on the Certificates and to provide the necessary sinking fund, all as described in this Ordinance;

(i1) Tt has the lawful power to pledge the Net Revenues supporting the Certificates and has
lawfully exercised said power under the laws of the State of Texas, including powers existing under
the Act, and the City’s Home Rule Charter.

(iit} Keep proper books of record and account in which full, true, and correct entries will be
made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the funds created pursuant to this
Ordinance, and all books, documents, and vouchers relating thereto shall at all reasonable times be
made available for inspection upon request from any owner.

(c) Title. Other than for the payment of the City’s currently outstanding Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2016 (pledge of no more than $1,000 of surplus revenues of the System); Certificates
of Obligation, Series 2021 (pledge of subordinate lien of net of the System), and Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2022 (pledge of subordinate lien of net revenues of the System), the Net Revenues of
the System have not in any manner been pledged to the payment of any debt or obligation of the City or
of the System.

(d) Liens. As long as any Certificates or any interest thereon remain Outstanding, the City will
not sell, lease, or encumber (except in the manner provided in this Section of this Ordinance) the System

or any substantial part thereof, provided that this covenant shall not be construed to prohibit the sale of

-15-



such machinery, or other properties or equipment which has become obsolete or otherwise unsuited to the
efficient operation of the System.

(e) No Free Service. No free service of the System shall be allowed, and should the City or any
of its agents or instrumentalities make use of the services and facilities of the System, payment of the
reasonable value thereof shall be made by the City out of funds from sources other than the revenues and
income of the System.

6] Insurance. It shall insure, or self-insure, to the extent deemed necessary by the
Council such parts of the System as are usually insured by municipalities operating like
properties, and insurance premiums shall be a part of the operating expenses of the System.

(g) Covenants Regarding Tax Matters. The City covenants to take any action to maintain, or
refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates as obligations
described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the interest on
which is not includable in “gross income” for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the
City specifically covenants as follows:

(1) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Certificates being treated as
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(i) To take any action to assure that no more than 10% of the proceeds of the Certificates or
the projects refinanced therewith are used for any “private business use,” as defined in
section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 10% of the proceeds or the projects refinanced
therewith are so used, that amounts, whether or not received by the City with respect to such private
business use, do not under the terms of this Ordinance or any underlying arrangement, directly or
indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than 10% of the debt service on the Certificates,
in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

(iif) To take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use” described in
paragraph (ii) hereof exceeds 5% of the proceeds of the Certificates or the projects refinanced
therewith, then the amount in excess of 5% is used for a “private business use” which is “related” and
not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the governmental use;

(iv) To take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of $5,000,000
or 5% of the proceeds of the Certificates is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons,
other than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code;

(v) To refrain from taking any action which would result in the Certificates being “federally
guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

(vi) Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of the Code and the regulations and rulings
thereunder, to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Certificates, directly or indirectly,
to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire investment property
(as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a materially higher yield over the term
of the Certificates.

(vii) To otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Certificates or amounts tested as
proceeds of the Certificates, as may be necessary, so that the Certificates do not otherwise contravene
the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to the extent applicable,
section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings),

(vii)) Except to the extent otherwise provided in section 148(f) of the Code and the
regulations and rulings thereunder, to pay to the United States of America at least once during each

-16-



five year period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Certificates) an amount that is at least equal
to 90% of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code, and to pay to the
United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Certificates have been paid in full, 100% of
the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code;

(ix) To maintain such records as will enable the City to fulfill its responsibilities under this
subsection and sections 141 and 148 of the Code, including without limitation, all information
relating to the Certificates, investment of Certificate proceeds, and use of the Certificate-financed
facility, and to retain such records for at least six years following the final payment of principal and
interest on the Certificates; and

(x) To comply with the information reporting requirements of section 149(¢) of the Code.

The covenants contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any
regulations or rulings promulgated by the U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as
applicable to the Certificates, the City will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein
to the extent that such modification or expansion, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel,
will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103
of the Code. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional
requirements which are applicable to the Certificates, the City agrees to comply with the additional
requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel, to preserve
the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code.

Proper officers of the City charged with the responsibility of issuing the Certificates are hereby
authorized and directed to execute any documents, certificates, or reports required by the Code and to
make such elections, on behalf of the City, which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the
purpose for the issuance of the Certificates.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Ordinance, to the extent necessary to preserve the
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code the covenants
contained in this subsection shall survive the later of the defeasance or discharge of the Certificates.

Section 14. Perfection of Security. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the
issuance of the Certificates and the pledge of the proceeds of ad valorem taxes and Net Revenues thereto,
and such pledge is, therefore, valid, effective, and perfected. Should Texas law be amended at any time
while the Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge of
the ad valorem tax proceeds and Net Revenues is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9,
Texas Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Certificates a
security interest in such pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and
necessary to enable a filing of a security interest in said pledge to occur.

Section 15. Further Covenants. The City further covenants and agrees by and through this
Ordinance that it has the lawful power to pledge the ad valorem taxes supporting this issue of Certificates
and has lawfully exercised said power under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and that the
Certificates issued hereunder shall be ratably secured in such manner that one Certificate shall have no
preference over any other Certificate of said issue.

Section 16. Sale of Certificates; Use of Proceeds. The sale of the Certificates at a price of the
par amount thereof is hereby approved, and delivery of the Certificate to the Initial Purchaser, shall be
made upon payment therefor in accordance with the terms of sale and the terms and conditions of the
Purchase and Investment Letter presented to and approved by the City, in substantially the form attached
hereto as Exhibit “B,” which price and terms are hereby found and determined to be the most
advantageous reasonably obtainable by the City. The Mayor and other appropriate officials of the City

-17-



are hereby authorized and directed to execute such Purchase and Investment Letter on behalf of the City,
and the Mayor and all other officials, agents, and representatives of the City are hereby authorized to do
any and all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for the
issuance and delivery of the Certificates. The proceeds from the sale of the Certificates shall be applied
as follows: (i) $6,030,000.00 of the proceeds shall be deposited into the Project Fund and (ii) the balance
of the proceeds shall be used to pay the cost of issuing the Certificates.

Section 17. Custody, Approval, and Registration of Certificates. (a) Initially, the Initial
Certificate numbered I-1 and being in the principal amount of the Certificates shall be registered in the
name of the Initial Purchaser, and shall be executed and submitted to the Attorney General of Texas for
approval, and thereupon certified by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas or his duly
authorized agent, by manual signature, and the Initial Certificate shall be effective and valid without the
Authentication Certificate being signed by the Paying Agent/Registrar. At any time thereafter, the Initial
Purchaser may deliver the Initial Certificate to the Paying Agent/Registrar for exchange, accompanied by
instructions from the Initial Purchaser or designee designating the persons, maturities, and principal
amounts to and in which the Certificate is to be transferred and the addresses of such persons, and the
Paying Agent/Registrar shall thereupon, within not more than three days, register and deliver such
Certificates as provided in such instructions.

(b) The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Certificate and all
necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Initial Certificate pending its delivery and its
investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and its
registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. Upon registration of the Initial
Certificate, said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in writing to act for said
Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate on the Initial Certificate, and
the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on the Initial Certificate. The legal
opinion of Bond Counsel and assigned CUSIP numbers, if any, may, at the option of the City, be printed
on or attached to the Initial Certificate or any Certificates issued and delivered in conversion of and
exchange or replacement of any Certificate, but neither shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for
the convenience and information of the Owners.

Section 18. Defeasance. (a) Except to the extent provided in subsection (c) of this Section, any
Certificate, and the interest thereon, shall be deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding within
the meaning of this Ordinance (a “Defeased Certificate”) when payment of the principal of such
Certificate, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity,
redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the
terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of redemption) or (ii) shall have been provided
for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to a person described
by Section 1207.061(a), Texas Government Code, as amended (a “Depositary™), with respect to the
safekeeping, investment, administration, and disposition of a deposit made under Section 1207.061, Texas
Government Code, as amended, for such payment (the “Deposit”) (A) lawful money of the United States
of America sufficient to make such payment or (B) Government Obligations, which may be in book-entry
form, that mature and bear interest payable at times and in amounts sufficient to provide for the scheduled
payment or redemption of any Defeased Certificate. To cause a Certificate scheduled to be paid or
redeemed on a date later than the next scheduled interest payment date on such Certificate to become a
Defeased Certificate, the City must, with respect to the Deposit, enter into an escrow or similar agreement
with a Depositary.

In connection with any defeasance of the Certificates, the City shall cause to be delivered either:
(i) a report of an independent firm of nationally recognized certified public accountants verifying the
sufficiency of an escrow established to pay the Defeased Certificates in full on the maturity or redemption
date thereof (the “Verification”), or (ii) a certificate from a qualified financial professional, certifying that
the amount deposited with a Depositary is sufficient to pay the Defeased Certificates in full on the
maturity or redemption date thereof. In addition to the required Verification or certificate, the City shall

-18-



also cause to be delivered an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the Defeased Certificates are no
longer outstanding pursuant to the terms hereof and a certificate of discharge of the Paying
Agent/Registrar with respect to the Defeased Certificates. The Verification, if any and each certificate
and opinion required hereunder shall be acceptable in form and substance, and addressed, if applicable, to
the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City. The Certificates shall remain outstanding hereunder unless and
until they are in fact paid and retired or the above criteria are met.

At such time as a Certificate shall be deemed to be a Defeased Certificate hereunder, and all
herein required criteria have been met, such Certificate and the interest thereon shall no longer be
outstanding or unpaid and shall no longer be entitled to the benefits of the pledge of the security interest
granted under this Ordinance, and such principal and interest shall be payable solely from the Deposit of
money or Government Obligations; provided, however, that the City has reserved the option to be
exercised at the time of the defeasance of the Certificates, to call for redemption, at an earlier date, those
Certificates which have been defeased to their maturity date, if the City: (i) in the proceedings providing
for the firm banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the right to call the Certificates for
redemption; (i1) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the Owners immediately following the
making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and (iii) directs that notice of reservation be
included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

(b) Any money so deposited with a Depositary may at the written direction of the City also be
invested in Government Obligations, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all
income from such Government Obligations received by a Depositary which is not required for the
payment of the Defeased Certificates and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so
deposited, shall be used as directed in writing by the City.

(c) Until all Defeased Certificates shall have become due and payable, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Certificates the
same as if they had not been defeased, and the City shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay
for such services as required by this Ordinance.

Section 19. Ordinance a Contract; Amendments. This Ordinance shall constitute a contract
with the Owners, from time to time, of the Certificates binding on the City and its successors and
assignees, and shall not be amended or repealed by the City as long as any Certificate remains outstanding
except as permitted in this Section. The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Owners,
amend, change, or modify this Ordinance as may be required (i) by the provisions hereof, (ii) in
connection with the issuance of any Additional Obligations, (iii) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity,
inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein, or (iv) in connection with any other change which is
not to the prejudice of the Owners. The City may, with the written consent of the Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of Certificates then outstanding affected thereby, amend, change, modify, or
rescind any provisions of this Ordinance; provided, however, that without the consent of all of the Owners
of the Certificates affected, no such amendment, change, modification, or rescission shall (i) extend the
time or times of payment of the principal of and interest on Additional Obligations on a parity with the
lien of the Certificates, reduce the principal amount thereof to the rate of interest thereon, or in any other
way modify the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates, (ii) give any
preference of any Certificate over any other Certificate, (iii) extend any waiver of default to subsequent
defaults, or (iv) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Certificates required for consent to any such
amendment, change, modification, or rescission. When the City desires to make any amendment or
addition to or rescission of this Ordinance requiring consent of the Owners, the City shall cause notice of
the amendment, addition, or rescission to be given as described above for a notice of redemption. When
at any time within one year after the date of the giving of such notice, the City shall receive an instrument
or instruments in writing executed by the appropriate number of Owners of the Certificates then
outstanding affected by any such amendment, addition, or rescission requiring the consent of Owners,
which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment, addition, or rescission described
in such notice and shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form

-19-



of the copy thereof referred to in such notice, thereupon, but not otherwise, the City may adopt such
amendment, addition, or rescission in substantially such form, except as herein provided. No Owner may
thereafter object to the adoption of such amendment, addition, or rescission, or to any of the provisions
thereof, and such amendment, addition, or rescission shall be fully effective for all purposes.

Section 20. Nonpresentment of Certificates. In the event any Certificate shall not be presented
for payment when the principal thereof or interest thereon, if applicable, becomes due, either at maturity
or otherwise, or if any check or draft representing payment of principal of or interest on the Certificates
shall not be presented for payment, if funds sufficient to pay the principal of or interest on such
Certificate shall have been made available by the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar for the benefit of the
Owner thereof, all liability of the City to the Owner thereof for the payment of the principal of or interest
on such Certificate shall cease, terminate, and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the
duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds in trust, uninvested and without liability for interest thereon,
for the benefit of the Owner of such Certificate who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such
funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Ordinance with respect to the principal of or
interest on such Certificate. To the extent applicable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold and apply any
such funds in accordance with Title 6, Texas Property Code, as amended, and shall comply with the
reporting requirements of Chapter 74, Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 21. Further Procedures. The Mayor, the City Attorney, the City Secretary, the Finance
Director, the City’s Financial Advisor, and all other officers, employees, attorneys, and agents of the City,
and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time
to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and
deliver in the name and under the seal and on behalf of the City, all such instruments, whether or not
herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this
Ordinance, the Certificates, and the Purchase and Investment Letter. Prior to the initial delivery of the
Certificates, the Mayor and Bond Counsel to the City are hereby authorized and directed to approve any
technical changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized by this
Ordinance necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely
document the transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance, (ii) obtain a rating from any of
the national bond rating agencies, or (iii) obtain the approval of the Certificates by the Texas Attorney
General’s office.

Section 22. Attorney General Examination Fee. The City recognizes that under Section
1202.004, Texas Government Code, the Attorney General of Texas requires a nonrefundable examination
fee be paid at the time of submission of the transcript of proceedings authorizing the Certificates and that
such is to be calculated as provided in said Section 1202.004. Bond Counsel is accommodating the City
by paying such fee upon such submission of such transcript. Officials of the City are, however, hereby
authorized to reimburse Bond Counsel such amount as soon as possible and whether or not the
Certificates are ever delivered and such amount is hereby appropriated from available funds for such
purpose. The City is also authorized to reimburse the fund used for such repayment with proceeds of the
Certificates.

Section 23. Miscellaneous Provisions. (a) Incorporation of Preamble. The preamble to this
Ordinance is incorporated by reference in this Ordinance.

(b) Titles Not Restrictive. The titles assigned to the various sections of this Ordinance are for
convenience only and shall not be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any section or of any part
of this Ordinance.

(c) Inconsistent Provisions. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict
or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed and declared to be inapplicable,
and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters prescribed herein.

-20-



(d) Severability. If any word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or provision of
this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held to be invalid, the
remainder of this Ordinance shall nevertheless be valid and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance
would have been enacted without such invalid word, phrase, clause, paragraph, sentence, part, portion, or
provisions.

(e} Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas.

(f) Open Meeting. The City officially finds and determines the meeting at which this Ordinance
is adopted was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of such meeting
was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

(g) Effective Date. In accordance with Article V, Section 17 of the City’s Charter, this

Ordinance shall take effect on the tenth (10™) day after the last day of publication of this Ordinance in a
newspaper publicly-circulated in the City.

APPROVED this May 8, 2023.

/s/ Mary Valenzuela /s/_Sam R. Fupate
City Secretary Mayor

21-



EXHIBIT A
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT

THIS PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT entered into as of May 1, 2023 (this
“Agreement”), by and between the CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS (the “Issuer”), and Zions
Bancorporation, N.A., a banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United
States of America (the “Bank”™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its “City of
Kingsville, Texas Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Certificates of Obligation, Series 2023 (the
“Securities”), such Securities to be issued in fully registered form only as to the payment of principal and
interest thereon;

WHEREAS, the Securities are scheduled to be delivered to the initial purchaser thereof as
provided in the “Ordinance” (hereinafter defined);

WHEREAS, the Issuer has selected the Bank to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar in connection
with the payment of the principal of and interest on the Securities and with respect to the registration,
transfer, and exchange thereof by the Owners thereof;

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to serve in such capacities for and on behalf of the Issuer and
has full power and authority to perform and serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Securities;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I
APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Section 1.01. Appointment. The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to serve as Paying Agent with
respect to the Securities. As Paying Agent for the Securities, the Bank shall be responsible for paying on
behalf of the Issuer the principal and interest on the Securities as the same become due and payable to the
Owners thereof, all in accordance with this Agreement and the Ordinance.

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities. As Registrar for
the Securities, the Bank shall keep and maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer books and records as to
the ownership of said Securities and with respect to the transfer and exchange thereof as provided herein
and in the Ordinance.

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to serve as the Paying Agent and Registrar
for the Securities.

Section 1.02. Compensation. As compensation for the Bank’s services as Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hereby agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in Schedule “A”
attached hereto for the first year of this Agreement and thereafter the fees and amounts set forth in the
Bank’s current fee schedule then in effect for services as Paying Agent/Registrar for municipalities,
which shall be supplied to the Issuer on or before 90 days prior to the close of the Fiscal Year of the
Issuer, and shall be effective upon the first day of the following Fiscal Year.

A-1



In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable expenses,
disbursements, and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any of the provisions
hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its agents and
counsel).

ARTICLE 11
DEFINITIONS

Section 2.01. Definitions. For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly
provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

“Bank Office” means the designated corporate trust office of the Bank as indicated on the
signature page hereof. The Bank will notify the Issuer in writing of any change in location of the Bank
Office.

“Financial Advisor” means Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc., San Antonio, Texas.
“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Issuer, ending September 30.

“Holder” and “Security Holder” each means the Person in whose name a Security is registered in
the Security Register.

“Issuer Request” and “Issuer Ordinance” means a written request or ordinance signed in the name
of the Issuer by its Mayor, Director of Finance, or City Secretary, or any one or more of said officials, and
delivered to the Bank.

“Legal Holiday” means a day on which the Bank is required or authorized to be closed.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock
company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision of a
government.

“Predecessor Securities” of any particular Security means every previous Security evidencing all
or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by such particular Security (and, for the purposes of
this definition, any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Security for which a replacement Security has
been registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 4.06 hereof and the Ordinance).

“Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed for
such redemption pursuant to the terms of the Ordinance.

“Resolution” means the ordinance of the governing body of the Issuer pursuant to which the
Securities are issued, certified by the Secretary or any other officer of the Issuer and delivered to the
Bank.

“Responsible Officer” when used with respect to the Bank means the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or Vice-chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the
Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Cashier, any Assistant Cashier, any Trust Officer or Assistant
Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar to those
performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with respect to a particular corporate
trust matter, any other officer to whom such matter is referred because of his knowledge of and familiarity
with the particular subject.



“Security Register” means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of the Issuer providing for
the registration and transfer of the Securities.

“Stated Maturity” means the date specified in the Ordinance the principal of a Security is
scheduled to be due and payable.

Section 2.02. Other Definitions. The terms “Bank”, “Issuer”, and “Securities (Security)” have
the meanings assigned to them in the recital paragraphs of this Agreement.

The term “Paying Agent/Registrar” refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties and
functions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III
PAYING AGENT

Section 3.01. Duties of Paying Agent. As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate
collected funds have been provided to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of
the Issuer the principal of each Security at its Stated Maturity, Redemption Date, or Acceleration Date, to
the Holder upon surrender of the Security to the Bank at the Bank Office.

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to it for
such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the interest on each Security when
due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder and preparing and sending checks by
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, on each payment date, to the Holders of the Securities (or
their Predecessor Securities) on the respective Record Date, to the address appearing on the Security
Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Bank, requested in writing by the Holder at the
Holder’s risk and expense.

Section 3.02. Payment Dates. The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to pay the principal of and
interest on the Securities on the dates specified in the Ordinance.

ARTICLE IV
REGISTRAR

Section 4.01. Security Register - Transfers and Exchanges. The Bank agrees to keep and
maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer at the Bank Office books and records (herein sometimes referred
to as the “Security Register”) for recording the names and addresses of the Holders of the Securities, the
transfer, exchange, and replacement of the Securities, and the payment of the principal of and interest on
the Securities to the Holders and containing such other information as may be reasonably required by the
Issuer and subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Bank may prescribe. All transfers,
exchanges, and replacement of Securities shall be noted in the Security Register.

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by
a written instrument of transfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed by an officer of a federal or
state bank or a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, in form satisfactory to the
Bank, duly executed by the Holder thereof or his agent duly authorized in writing.

The Bank may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a re-registration,
transfer, or exchange of the Securities.

To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, the Bank agrees that, in relation to an
exchange or transfer of Securities, the exchange or transfer by the Holders thereof will be completed and

A-3



new Securities delivered to the Holder or the assignee of the Holder in not more than three business days
after the receipt of the Securities to be cancelled in an exchange or transfer and the written instrument of
transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Holder, or his duly authorized agent, in form and
manner satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 4.02. Securities. The Issuer shall provide an adequate inventory of printed Securities to
facilitate transfers or exchanges thereof. The Bank covenants that the inventory of printed Securities will
be kept in safekeeping pending their use, and reasonable care will be exercised by the Bank in
maintaining such Securities in safekeeping, which shall be not less than the care maintained by the Bank
for debt securities of other political subdivisions or corporations for which it serves as registrar, or that is
maintained for its own securities.

Section 4.03. Form of Security Register. The Bank, as Registrar, will maintain the Security
Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer, and exchange of the Securities in accordance with
the Bank’s general practices and procedures in effect from time to time. The Bank shall not be obligated
to maintain such Security Register in any form other than those which the Bank has currently available
and currently utilizes at the time.

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of being
converted into written form within a reasonable time.

Section 4.04. List of Security Holders. The Bank will provide the Issuer at any time requested
by the Issuer, upon payment of the required fee, a copy of the information contained in the Security
Register. The Issuer may also inspect the information contained in the Security Register at any time the
Bank is customarily open for business, provided that reasonable time is allowed the Bank to provide an
up-to-date listing or to convert the information into written form.

Unless required by law, the Bank will not release or disclose the contents of the Security Register
to any person other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee of the Issuer,
except upon receipt of a court order or as otherwise required by law. Upon receipt of a court order and
prior to the release or disclosure of the contents of the Security Register, the Bank will notify the Issuer so
that the Issuer may contest the court order or such release or disclosure of the contents of the Security
Register.

Section 4.05. Return of Cancelled Securities. The Bank will, at such reasonable intervals as it
determines, surrender to the Issuer, Securities in lieu of which or in exchange for which other Securities
have been issued, or which have been paid.

Section 4.06. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, or Stolen Securities. The Issuer hereby instructs the
Bank, subject to the applicable provisions of the Ordinance, to deliver and issue Securities in exchange
for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities as long as the same does not result in an
over issuance.

In case any Security shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Bank, in its discretion,
may execute and deliver a replacement Security of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated
Security, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost, or stolen Security, only after (i) the
filing by the Holder thereof with the Bank of evidence satisfactory to the Bank of the destruction, loss, or
theft of such Security, and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to the Bank
of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the Issuer and the Bank harmless. All expenses and
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution, and delivery of a
replacement Security shall be borne by the Holder of the Security mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen.

A-4



Section 4.07. Transaction Information to Issuer. The Bank will, within a reasonable time
after receipt of written request from the Issuer, furnish the Issuer information as to the Securities it has
paid pursuant to Section 3.01, Securities it has delivered upon the transfer or exchange of any Securities
pursuant to Section 4.01, and Securities it has delivered in exchange for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed,
lost, or stolen Securities pursuant to Section 4.06.

ARTICLE V
THE BANK

Section 5.01. Duties of Bank. The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth herein and
agrees to use reasonable care in the performance thereof.

The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial delivery of the
Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum approved by the Issuer as prepared by the
Issuer’s Financial Advisor or other agent. The Bank may act on a facsimile or e-mail transmission of the
closing memorandum acknowledged by the Financial Advisor or the Issuer as the final closing
memorandum. The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs, or expenses arising directly or indirectly
from the Bank’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions.

Section 5.02. Reliance on Documents, Ete. (a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth
of the statements and correctness of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or opinions furnished
to the Bank.

The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible
Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.

No provisions of this Agreement shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of
any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds
or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is not assured to it.

The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution,
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note,
security, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by
the proper party or parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing statement, the Bank need not
examine the ownership of any Securities, but is protected in acting upon receipt of Securities containing
an endorsement or instruction of transfer or power of transfer which appears on its face to be signed by
the Holder or an agent of the Holder. The Bank shall not be bound to make any investigation into the
facts or matters stated in a resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request,
direction, consent, order, bond, note, security, or other paper or document supplied by the Issuer.

The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or any opinion of
counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action taken, suffered,
or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

The Bank may exercise any of the powers hereunder and perform any duties hereunder either
directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank.

Section 5.03. Recitals of Issuer. The recitals contained herein with respect to the Issuer and in
the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer, and the Bank assumes no responsibility for
their correctness.



The Bank shall in no event be liable to the Issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, or any
other Person for any amount due on any Security from its own funds.

Section 5.04. May Hold Securities. The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity, may
become the owner or pledgee of Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the same rights it
would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any other agent.

Section 5.05. Money Held by Bank. A special depository account shall at all times be kept and
maintained by the Bank for the receipt, safekeeping, and disbursement of money received from the Issuer
and held hereunder for the payment of the Securities, and money deposited to the credit of such account
until paid to the Holders of the Securities, to the extent permitted by law, shall be continuously
collateralized by securities or obligations which qualify and are eligible under the laws of the State of
Texas to secure and be pledged as collateral for deposits of public funds by an instrumentality and
political subdivision of the State of Texas to the extent that such money is not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Payments made from such account shall be made by check drawn on
such account uniess the owner of such Securities shall, at its own expense and risk, request such other
medium of payment.

All funds at any time and from time to time provided to or held by the Bank hereunder shall be
deemed, construed, and considered for all purposes as being provided to or held by the Bank in trust. The
Bank acknowledges, covenants, and represents that it is acting herein in trust in relation to such funds,
and is not accepting, holding, administering, or applying such funds as a banking depository, but solely as
a paying agent for and on behalf of the Security thereto. The Holders shall be entitled to the same
preferred claim and first lien on the funds so provided as are enjoyed by the beneficiaries of trust funds
generally. The funds provided to the Bank hereunder shall not be subject to warrants, drafts, or checks
drawn by the Issuer and, except as expressly provided herein, shall not be subject to compromise, setoff,
or other charge or diminution by the Bank.

The Bank shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder.

Subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas and any provisions in the Ordinance
to the contrary, any money deposited with the Bank for the payment of the principal, premium (if any), or
interest on any Security and remaining unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security has
become due and payable will be paid by the Bank to the Issuer, and the Holder of such Security shall
thereafter look only to the Issuer for payment thereof, and all liability of the Bank with respect to such
money shall thereupon cease. If the Issuer does not elect, the Bank is directed to report and dispose of the
funds in compliance with Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, as amended.

Section 5.06. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer agrees to indemnify
the Bank for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense incurred without negligence or
bad faith on its part, arising out of or in connection with its acceptance or administration of its duties
hereunder, including the cost and expense against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or
performance of any of its powers or duties under this Agreement.

Section 5.07. Interpleader. The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek adjudication
of any adverse claim, demand, or controversy over its person as well as funds on deposit, in either a
Federal or State District Court located in the State and Issuer where the administrative offices of the
Issuer are located, and agree that service of process by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, to the address referred to in Section 6.03 of this Agreement shall constitute adequate service.
The Issuer and the Bank further agree that the Bank has the right to file a Bill of Interpleader in any court
of competent jurisdiction in the State of Texas to determine the rights of any Person claiming any interest
herein.

A-6



Section 5.08. Depository Trust Company Services. It is hereby represented and warranted
that, in the event the Securities are otherwise qualified and accepted for “Depository Trust Company”
services or equivalent depository trust services by other organizations, the Bank has the capability and, to
the extent within its control, will comply with the “Operational Arrangements”, currently in effect, which
establishes requirements for securities to be eligible for such type depository trust services, including, but
not limited to, requirements for the timeliness of payments and funds availability, transfer turnaround
time, and notification of redemptions and calls.

Section 5.09. Reporting Requirements of Paying Agent/Registrar. To the extent required by
the Code and the regulations promulgated and pertaining thereto, it shall be the duty of the Paying
Agent/Registrar, on behalf of the Issuer, to report to the owners of the Securities and the Internal Revenue
Service (i) the amount of “reportable payments”, if any, subject to backup withholding during each year
and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with respect to payments of the Securities and (ii) the amount of
interest or amount treating as interest on the Securities and required to be included in gross income of the
owner thereof.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.01. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in writing
signed by both of the parties hereto.

Section 6.02. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
prior written consent of the other.

Section 6.03. Notices. Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver, or
other document provided or permitted hereby to be given or furnished to the Issuer or the Bank shall be
mailed or delivered to the Issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses shown on the signature page
of this Agreement.

Section 6.04. Effect of Headings. The Article and Section headings herein are for convenience
only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 6.05. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and agreements herein made by the Issuer
shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.

Section 6.06. Severability. In case any provision herein shall be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way
be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 6.07. Benefits of Agreement. Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give to any
Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any legal or equitable
right, remedy, or claim hereunder.

Section 6.08. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Ordinance constitute the entire
agreement between the parties hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying Agent/Registrar and if any

conflict exists between this Agreement and the Ordinance, the Ordinance shall govern.

Section 6.09. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

A-7



Section 6.10. Termination. This Agreement will terminate (i) on the date of final payment of
the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders thereof or (ii) may be earlier terminated by
either party upon 60 days written notice; provided, however, an early termination of this Agreement by
either party shall not be effective until (a) a successor Paying Agent/Registrar has been appointed by the
Issuer and such appointment accepted and (b) notice has been given to the Holders of the Securities of
the appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar. Furthermore, the Bank and Issuer mutually agree
that the effective date of an early termination of this Agreement shall not occur at any time which would
disrupt, delay, or otherwise adversely affect the payment of the Securities.

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and deliver
the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with other pertinent books and records relating to the
Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer.

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force and
effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Section 6.11. Certificate of Interested Parties Form 1295. The Bank represents and warrants
that it is exempt from the requirements of Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code, as amended,
pursuant to subsection (c)(4) thereof, and, accordingly, the Bank is not required to file a Certificate of
Interested Parties Form 1295 otherwise prescribed thereunder.

Section 6.12. Anti Boycott Verification. The Bank hereby verifies that it and its parent
company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and, to
the extent this Agreement is a contract for goods or services, will not boycott Israel during the term of this
Agreement. The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2271.002, Texas
Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal law. As used in
the foregoing verification, ‘boycott Israel’ means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities
with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit
commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes. The Bank
understands ‘affiliate’ to mean an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with
the Bank and exists to make a profit.

Section 6.13. Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. The Paying Agent represents
that neither it nor any of its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates
is a company identified on a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the
following pages of such officer’s internet website:

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf,

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf.

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas Government
Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal law neither the Paying Agent
nor any wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United States
government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan
or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization. The Paying Agent
understands “affiliate” to mean any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with
the Paying Agent and exists to make a profit.

A-8



Section 6.14. Contract Value. The Bank hereby verifies that this Agreement has a value of less
than $100,000 and that the provisions required by Sections 2271.002 and 2274.002 of the Texas
Government Code for contracts having a value of at least $100,000 are not required in this Agreement.

Section 6.15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written.

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, N. A.

By:

Title:

Address: 1717 West Loop South
Houston, Texas 77027
Attention: Mike Weir

(BANK SEAL)
Notice to:
Address: One South Main, 17th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84133
Attention: Kirsi Hansen
Attest: CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
By By
Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary Sam R. Fugate, Mayor
Address: 400 West King Avenue
Kingsville, Texas 78363
(CITY SEAL)

SIGNATURE PAGE TO PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT FOR THE
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND SUBORDINATE LIEN
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2023



SCHEDULE A

Paying Agent/Registrar Fee Schedule

NONE



EXHIBIT B

PURCHASE AND INVESTMENT LETTER

ZMFU II, Inc.
One South Main, 17th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84133

May 8, 2023

Re: City of Kingsville, Texas Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2023 (the “Certificates™)

City of Kingsville, Texas Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc.
400 West King Avenue 14414 Blanco Road, Suite 320
Kingsville, Texas 78363 San Antonio, Texas 78216
Winstead PC

112 East Pecan Street, Suite 725
San Antonio, Texas 78205

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have agreed to purchase and the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas (the
“City”) has agreed to sell to us the captioned Certificates at the purchase price of $6,100,000 and no
accrued interest. The Certificates are scheduled to finally mature on August 1, 2038, shall bear the terms,
shall be secured, and are subject to redemption as described in the City’s ordinance authorizing the
Certificates adopted on May 8, 2023 (the “Ordinance”), all subject to receipt by you and by us of such
opinions, certificates, and other documents as you or we may reasonably require to establish the validity
and legality of the Certificates. The Certificates are scheduled to be delivered on or about May 31, 2023
(the “Closing”).

ZMFU 11, Inc., (the “Purchaser”) hereby represents and warrants that:

) we are (a) an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Regulation D promulgated
under the Securities Act of 1933 or (b) a state or national bank organized under the laws of the United
States, and we have sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, including
purchase and ownership of municipal obligations, to be able to evaluate the economic risks and merits of
the purchase of the Certificates;

(2)  we acknowledge that no prospectus or other offering document has been prepared;
however, the City provided to us all information requested by us to permit us to make an informed
decision concerning its purchase of the Certificates, and we made such inspections and investigations as
we deemed necessary to determine the investment quality of the Certificates and to assess all risk factors
associated with the purchase and ownership of the Certificates. We had a reasonable opportunity to
request and review such other information as we need from the City to enable us to make our purchase
decision. We are not relying on Winstead PC, the City’s Bond Counsel, or Estrada Hinojosa & Company,

B-1



Inc., the City’s Financial Advisor, as to the completeness or accuracy of any financial information
provided to us by the City in connection with its determination to make an investment in the Certificates;

3) we have either been furnished with or have had access to all necessary information that
we have requested in order to enable us to make an informed decision concerning the purchase of the
Certificates, and we have had the opportunity to ask questions and receive answers from knowledgeable
individuals concerning the purpose for which the proceeds of the Certificates will be utilized, and the
security therefor, so that we have been able to make an informed decision to purchase the Certificates;

G we are purchasing the Certificates for our own account as evidence of a privately placed
and negotiated bank loan and not with a view to, and with no present intention of, selling, pledging,
transferring, conveying, hypothecating, mortgaging, disposing, reoffering, distributing, or reselling the
Certificates, or any part or interest thereof, and will not sell or transfer the Certificates except to persons
who are able to and do confirm in writing to us and to you the representations contained in paragraphs (1)
through (3) and this paragraph to the same extent as if such paragraphs referred to such persons;

5) we further acknowledge that we are responsible for consulting with our advisors
concerning any obligations, including, but not limited to, any obligations pursuant to federal and state
securities and income tax laws, we may have with respect to subsequent purchasers of the Certificates if
and when any such future disposition of the Certificates may occur;

(6) we understand that the Certificates (a) are not being registered under the Securities Act of
1933 and are not being registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and
regulations of any state due to exemptions from registration provided for therein, (b) will not be listed on
any stock or other securities exchange, (c) will carry no rating from any rating service, and (d) will not be
readily marketable,

(D we understand that the City is not required to make any continuing disclosure pursuant to
Rule 15¢2-12(b) (the “Rule™) of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, because the Certificates are being sold pursuant to a private placement
with the Purchaser with denominations of $100,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof;
provided, however, the City will provide the Purchasers with its audited annual financial statements
within 180 days after each fiscal year end;

)] To the extent this Purchase and Investment Letter constitutes a contract for goods or
services for which a written verification is required under Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, we
hereby verify that our company and our parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and
other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of this Purchase
and Investment Letter. The foregoing verification is made solely to enable the City to comply with such
Section and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal or Texas law. As used in
the foregoing verification, “boycott Israel,” a term defined in Section 2271.001, Texas Government Code,
by reference to Section 808.001(1), Texas Government Code, means refusing to deal with, terminating
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm
on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in
Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business
purposes.

® We represent that neither our company nor any of our respective parent companies,
wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, is a company identified on a list
prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 or Section
2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of such officer's internet
website:



https ://comptroller.texas .gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf,
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf.

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas Government
Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal or Texas law and excludes
our company and any of its respective parent companies, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and
other affiliates, if any, that the United States government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from
its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a foreign
terrorist organization.

(10) To the extent this Purchase and Investment Letter constitutes a contract for goods or
services for which a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 13 in
the 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, we hereby verify
that our company and our parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if
any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of this
Purchase and Investment Letter. The foregoing verification is made solely to enable the City to comply
with such Section and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal or Texas law. As
used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies,” a term defined in Section 2274.001(1),
Texas Government Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill) by reference to Section 809.001, Texas
Government Code (also as enacted by such Senate Bill), shall mean, without an ordinary business
purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is
intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the
company (A) engages in the exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of
fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to meet environmental standards beyond
applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business with a company described by (A) above.

(11)  To the extent this Purchase and Investment Letter constitutes a contract for goods or
services for which a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 19 in
the 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, we hereby verify
that our company and our parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if
any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or
firearm trade association and will not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association
during the term of this Purchase and Investment Letter. The foregoing verification is made solely to
enable the City to comply with such Section and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable
Federal or Texas law.

As used in the foregoing verification and the following definitions,

(@ ‘discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association,” a term defined in
Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill), (A) means, with respect
to the firearm entity or firearm trade association, to (i) refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or
services with the firearm entity or firearm trade association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or
firearm trade association, (ii) refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the firearm
entity or firearm trade association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade
association, or (iil) terminate an existing business relationship with the firearm entity or firearm trade
association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association and (B) does not
include (i) the established policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the
listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm accessories and (ii) a company’s refusal to engage in

B-3



the trade of any goods or services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or
decision to terminate an existing business relationship (aa) to comply with federal, state, or local law,
policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency or (bb) for any traditional business reason that
is spectfic to the customer or potential customer and not based solely on an entity’s or association’s status
as a firearm entity or firearm trade association;

(b) ‘firearm entity,” a term defined in Section 2274.001(6), Texas Government Code (as
enacted by such Senate Bill), means a manufacturer, distributor, wholesaler, supplier, or retailer of
firearms (defined in Section 2274.001(4), Texas Government Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as
weapons that expel projectiles by the action of explosive or expanding gases), firearm accessories
(defined in Section 2274.001(5), Texas Government Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as devices
specifically designed or adapted to enable an individual to wear, carry, store, or mount a firearm on the
individual or on a conveyance and items used in conjunction with or mounted on a firearm that are not
essential to the basic function of the firearm, including detachable firearm magazines), or ammunition
(defined in Section 2274.001(1), Texas Government Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as a loaded
cartridge case, primer, bullet, or propellant powder with or without a projectile) or a sport shooting range
(defined in Section 250.001, Texas Local Government Code, as a business establishment, private club, or
association that operates an area for the discharge or other use of firearms for silhouette, skeet, trap, black
powder, target, self-defense, or similar recreational shooting), and

(©) ‘firearm trade association,” a term defined in Section 2274.001(7), Texas Government
Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill), means any person, corporation, unincorporated association,
federation, business league, or business organization that (i) is not organized or operated for profit (and
none of the net earnings of which inures to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual), (ii) has
two or more firearm entities as members, and (iii) is exempt from federal income taxation under Section
501(a), Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as an organization described by Section 501(c) of that code.”

(12)  as used in Sections 8 through 11, we understand ‘affiliate’ to mean an entity that controls,
is controlled by, or is under common control with our company within the meaning of SEC Rule 405, 17
C.F.R. § 230.405, and exists to make a profit;

(13)  we understand and agree that the foregoing representations and warranties will be relied
upon by Winstead PC, Bond Counsel to the City, in rendering its opinion on the exemption of the
Certificates from the registration requirements under existing federal and state securities laws; and

(14)  as a condition to the purchase of the Certificates, there shall not have occurred a material
adverse change in the City’s financial condition and the Purchaser shall receive at the Closing (i) an
executed copy of the Ordinance; (i1) an opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the Certificates constitutes a
legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City, and that interest on the Certificates will be excludable
from the gross income of the holders thereof pursuant to the provisions of the Code; (iii) an opinion of the
Attorney General of the State of Texas to the effect that the Certificates have been lawfully issued by the
City and are valid and binding obligations of the City under applicable laws of the State of Texas; (iv) an
executed certificate as to tax-exemption and IRS Form 8038G; (v) an executed a General Certificate and,
unless such certifications are contained in the General Certificate, a Signature and No-Litigation
Certificate, to the effect that no litigation of any nature is then pending against, or to the best knowledge
of the certifying officer, threatened against the City contesting or attacking the Certificate; restraining or
enjoining the authorization, execution, or delivery of the Certificate; affecting the provisions made for the
payment of or security for the Certificate; in any manner questioning the authority of the proceedings for
the authorization, execution or delivery of the Certificate; or affecting the validity of the Certificate, the
Ordinance, the corporate existence of the City, or the titles of the then-present members of the City
Commission.



This letter may be executed in multiple counterparts.
Very truly yours,

ZMFU 11, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED this 8th day of May, 2023.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

By:

Name: Sam R. Fugate

Title: Mayor

B-5
4858-1724-6303v.4 41364-1 5/4/2023



AGENDA ITEM #4



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer
DATE: May 8, 2023

SUBJECT:  Consider approving Change Order No. 2 for the Phase II of 2021 City-
Wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements Project (Bid#
21-11).

Purpose:

During the construction phase it was discovered that several residents had an existing
secondary entrance. These drainage improvements involve excavating drainage ditches
- within the right of way (ROW) and additional culverts will be required. Change Order No.2
would need to be approved to minimize the impact to residents along W. Sage Road.
Additional time is requested by the contractor for the additional scope of work. The
increase to the contract amount is within the 25% allowed.

Summary:

Revised Contract Total $269,6072.77
Change Order No. 2 Total _ +$47,772.75
Revised Contract + C.O. No. 2 Total $317,380.52
Revised Contract Revised -$269,607.77
Change Order No.21 Amount $47,772.75

Revised Contract Time (calendar days) 120 days

Change Order No. 2 (calendar days) +21 days
Revised Contract + CO No. 2 141 days
Background:

The purpose is to award 2021 City-wide Misc. Concrete and Drainage Improvements
Project — Phase II for the drainage improvements along W. Sage Road between N.
Armstrong St. (FM1898) and Young Drive, since the contractor has successfully
completed Phase I of the project. The project will also include awarding Change Order
No.1 for the remaining work on W. Kenedy Ave.




City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Original bids were received on August 3, 2021, and the project was then split into two
phases. The original construction cost for work on W. Sage Road (Alternate Bid No. 1)
and including Alternate Bid No. 2 was $211,091.70. The contractor submitted a revised
construction cost of $259,962.27 due to the increased material and fuel prices. The cost
increase is 23%. This revised cost is still under the original bid of the second lowest
bidder. The prices have been verified and justified with the current market prices.

Original Contract Amount Revised $259,962.27
Add Kenedy Avenue Amount (CO No. 1) +$ 9,645.50
Total Contract + Change Order No. 1 $269,607.77
Original Contract Amount Revised -$259,962.27
Change Order No. 1 Amount $ 9,645.50

Original Contract Time (calendar days) 90 days
Change Order No. 1 (calendar days) +30 days
Original Contract + CO No. 1 120 days

Per the General Conditions of the Contract, City may order the Contractor to proceed
with desired unit prices specified in the Contract, provided that in case of a unit price
contract the net value of all changes does not increase the original total amount of the
agreement by more than twenty-five percent (25%). Here not more than $64,990.57.

Financial Impact:
Change Order No.2 will be funded by Fund 055 Utility Storm Water Drainage Fund in the
amount of $47,772.75.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approving Change Order No. 2 for Phase II (W. Sage Road) in the
amount of $47,772.75 and 21 additional calendar days to the contract for Phase II.

Attachments:
Change Order No.2




CHANGE ORDER NO. 2
2021 CITY-WIDE MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE
AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE 2

CHANGE ORDER NQO. 2 AMOUNT

CITY ﬁ

WORK ACTIVITIES QUANTITIES UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
REMOVE/DISPOSE OF CONCRETE 602.5 SF S 500|S$ 3,012.50
6" THICK CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 602.5 SF S 145015 8,736.25
18" DIAM. CL I REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE 456 LF S 79.00 | $ 36,024.00

TOTAL S 47,772.75
PHASE 2 BASE BID TOTAL S 259,962.27
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TOTAL S 9,645.50
CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 TOTAL S 47,772.75
ORIG. CONTRACT + CONO.1+CONO.2 S 317,380.52
ORIGINAL CONTRACT + CONO. 1 $ (269,607.77)
CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 S 47,772.75
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TIME (CALENDAR DAYS) 90 DAYS
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 (CALENDAR DAYS) 30 DAYS
CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 (CALENDAR DAYS) 21 DAYS
ORIG. CONTRACT TIME + CONO. 1+ CONO. 2 141 DAYS

Contractor's Aul{riza% !2 ’

B

M

Contractor's Signature

Engineer's Recommendation

Vede. P poe . >c

Engineer's Signature

City Commission Approval

Mayor's Signature

Ao

78 2023

Date

Aped 25, 2023

Date

Date




RESOLUTION #2023-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PHASE Il CHANGE ORDER #2 FOR THE
CITY-WIDE MISC. CONCRETE AND DRAINAGE SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND ETECH CONSTRUCTION INC.;
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (City) intends to make some city-wide
miscellaneous concrete and drainage improvements and went out for bids via
BID #21-11 which was advertised on July 15, 2021 and July 22, 2021;

WHEREAS, the City received two bids on August 3, 2021 responsive to BID #21-
11 and after reviewing the bid submittals staff recommended BID #21-11 be
awarded to the bidder scoring the low bidder providing the best value to the City,
which was Etech Construction Inc. (Etech) ;

WHEREAS, the City awarded BID#21-11 to Etech at a Commission meeting on
August 23, 2021;

WHEREAS, the City and Etech worked to prepare two contracts for City-wide
Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements and the parties both agree
to the terms of the proposed contracts for the base bid (Phase 1) of $386,717.00
and for alternates no. 1 & 2 (Phase Il) of $211,091.70, which together is a total
amount of $597,808.70, with the contracts being approved by City Commission
via Resolution #2021-70 on October 12, 2021;

WHEREAS, due to inflationary cost increases for materials and fuel prices since
the time the bid was awarded until now when Phase |l is to be started, the total
cost for Phase Il needs to be adjusted to $259,962.27 which is still under the
original bid of the second lowest bidder;

WHEREAS, work on Phase | has been completed and the Commission
authorized Phase |l via Resolution #22-55 on October 11, 2022 so staff is
recommending the contractor proceed with Phase |I Change Order #2 for
additional work needed because several residents have secondary entrances
that require drainage replacement on West Sage Road in an amount of
$47,772.75 with an additional contract time of 21 calendar day;

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas:



THAT the City Commission approves and the Mayor is authorized and directed
as an act of the City of Kingsville, Texas to execute Phase Il Change Order No.2
of the Standard Form Agreement between the City of Kingsville, Texas and
Etech Construction Inc. for City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage
Improvements as per staff recommendation and in accordance with Exhibit A
hereto attached and made a part hereof.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
8th day of __May ,2023.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

39



AGENDA ITEM #5



Acen Them

City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: May 8, 2023

SUBJECT:  Consider Awarding contract to Ardurra Group, Inc. for Professional
Services for Surveying Proposed Utility Easements

Purpose:

The purpose of awarding this project is to complete surveying of proposed utility
easements related to future development of wastewater services on the east side of
Highway 77/Interstate 69 in Kingsville, Texas.

Summary:

On April 24, 2023, a Proposal for Services was received from Ardurra Group, Inc. for
performing utility easement survey work for future development of a new sanitary
forcemain easement to be located between E. Santa Gertrudis and E. Kennedy Avenue
just east of Highway 77/Interstate 69 in Kingsville, Texas.

The Scope of Services is listed in Attachment 1. Contractor’s references have been
verified. Ardurra has completed several projects and maintain a good working
relationship with the City.

Background:

Financial Impact:
The Utility Fund will allocate up to $14,250.00 to cover Professional Services.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends:




City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

1. Approving Contract Agreement between City and Ardurra Group Inc. in an amount
Not To Exceed (NTE) $14,250.00.

2. Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Contract.

Attachments:

Proposed Work on Attachment 1, “Kingsville - SS Easement Survey Proposal-042423-
Ardurra.paf”

Resolution No. 2023-




RESOLUTION #2023-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES WITH
ARDURRA GROUP, INC. FOR A UTILITY EASEMENT; REPEALING ALL
CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (“City”) plans to propose a utility easement for
the future development of wastewater services on the east side of U.S. Highway
77/Interstate 69 in Kingsville, Texas; and

WHEREAS, in order to propose a utility easement, it is necessary to obtain the
services of a professional surveyor to perform the utility easement survey work;
and

WHEREAS, the City contacted Ardurra Group, Inc. (formerly LNV, LLC) and
received a proposal from their survey division for the proposed utility easement
work in an amount not to exceed $14,250.00 that is to be paid from the Utility
Fund; and

WHEREAS, the company’s references have been verified and the firm has
previously performed work satisfactorily for the City;

WHEREAS, staff has negotiated a contract for a fair and reasonable price and
now brings the contract back before City Commission for approval.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

I
THAT the City Manager is authorized and directed as an act of the City of
Kingsville, Texas to execute a Proposal for Services with Ardurra Group, Inc. for

a Utility Easement in accordance with Exhibit A hereto attached and made a part
thereof.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
8th day of __May , 2023.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



v
N ,fj
kN o

Bt

ARDURRA

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

April 24, 2023

City of Kingsville
400 W. King Avenue / P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, TX 78364

Attn:  Rutilio “Rudy” P. Mora, Jr, PE, CFM - City Engineer

In response to your request, Ardurra Group, Inc — Survey Division (formerly LNV, LLC) is
proposing the following scope of services for the new sanitary forcemain easement to be located
between E. Santa Gertrudis and E. Kennedy Avenue just east of Highway 77, in Kingsville, Texas.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

» Ardurra shall perform the boundary work to establish the right-of-way of Kenedy Avenue
along with identifying the route of the existing sanitary sewer effluent line between the
waste water treatment plant and Kenedy Avenue.

« Ardurra shall also submit a One-Call utility locate ticket for the city and third party utility
locators to mark their utilities along the route.

o To perform this work, Ardurra will need permission from the adjoining land owners
south of the waste water treatment plant and east of Tranquitas Creek.

¢ Ardurra shall prepare a survey exhibit and legal description of said easement and submit
to the client for their use.

» Ardurra shall receive a 24 to 48 hour notice for scheduling purposes and coordination for
site access to begin survey work.

* Any additional surveying services related to design services, bidding, and/or contract
administration shall be performed at our standard hourly rates according to the latest
Ardurra standard rate sheet, only upon authorization by Client.

« Optional — In the event utility location is required, Ardurra shall provide the Client with
hydro excavation services along the route between the waste water treatment plant and
Kenedy Avenue, assuming 4 potholes at locations To Be Determined at a later date.

o Hydro excavation service includes disposal of old material, new backfill material
(assuming non paved areas), and mobilization to and from site.

2230 Saratoga Boulevard | Corpus Christi, TX 78417 | 361.883.1984 | www.ardusra.com



April 24, 2023
A / e
\/

St

ARDURRA

ESTIMATE OF COST

Ardurra proposes to perform the above listed Scope of Services for a lump sum fee as
indicated below;

+ Surveying Services

o Fieldwork, Utilities, and CAD file $5,250
o New Utility Easement (for new sanitary forcemain) $3,500
o Optional - Hydro excavation services $5,500

» (includes 4 potholes at locations TBD)
Base Bid = $8,750 (assuming sales tax exempt)

Base Bid + Option = $14,250 (assuming sales tax exempt)

Any additional work not listed in the above Scope of Services will be performed in accordance
with our current contract rate schedule, only upon authorization by Client.

If you are in agreement with our proposal, please provide a Task Order to serve as our
authorization to proceed. We appreciate the opportunity to work with you and look forward to
providing you with our services. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at
361.883.1984 or by email, Scanales@ardurra.com

Sincerely,

= )
7 ,/; = }
Afddrra Group, Inc.

By: Sergio Z. Canales, RPLS
Its:  Senior Survey Manager

2230 Saratoga Boulevard | Corpus Christi, TX 78417 | 361.883.1984 | www.ardurra.com



) AVM 40
Eo_mozzmsm;

d

s o
WV ACGANN3Y 3

AV AGINNDY 3— =i S

m v ,uz_w_ 3

mw« 4

INIWISVI 3OVNIVNG
3014 19 S2 ONUSIG

=
o
i

cofh - ¥
— SIONAINGD VINVS 3

JIOHNYW ¥3IM3S ONUSIX3
01 NIVN 30804 103NNOD




AGENDA ITEM #6



Pudaet /’cm‘

City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: May 8, 2023

SUBJECT:  Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to cover Professional Services for Surveying Proposed Utility
Easements (see map on Page 3 of Attachment 1).

Summary:
The Budget Amendment will be allocated for Professional Services for Surveying

proposed Utility Easement to provide wastewater services for future development on
the east side of Interstate 69 (see map on Page 3 of Attachment 1 titled “Kingsville - SS
Easement Survey Proposal-042423-Ardurra.pdf”).

Financial Impact:
The Utility Fund will allocate $14,250.00 to cover Professional Services.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the Budget Amendment.

Attachments:
Proposed Work on Attachment 1, “Kingsville - SS Easement Survey Proposal-042423-
Ardurra.pdf’

Ordinance No. 2023-




) v X
ool L
N\QJ\E '
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners o
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer
DATE: May 8, 2023

SUBJECT:  Consider Awarding contract to Ardurra Group, Inc. for Professional
Services for Surveying Proposed Utility Easements

Purpose:

The purpose of awarding this project is to complete surveying of proposed utility
easements related to future development of wastewater services on the east side of
Highway 77/Interstate 69 in Kingsville, Texas.

Summary:

On April 24, 2023, a Proposal for Services was received from Ardurra Group, Inc. for
performing utility easement survey work for future development of a new sanitary
forcemain easement to be located between E. Santa Gertrudis and E. Kennedy Avenue
just east of Highway 77/Interstate 69 in Kingsville, Texas.

The Scope of Services is listed in Attachment 1. Contractor’s references have been
verified. Ardurra has completed several projects and maintain a good working
relationship with the City.

Background:

Financial Impact:
The Utility Fund will allocate up to $14,250.00 to cover Professional Services.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends:




City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

1. Approving Contract Agreement between City and Ardurra Group Inc. in an amount
Not To Exceed (NTE) $14,250.00.

2. Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Contract.

Attachments:
Proposed Work on Attachment 1, “Kingsville - SS Easement Survey Proposal-042423-
Ardurra.pdf’

Resolution No. 2023-

UF\ M

%ﬁﬂle



ARDURRA

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

April 24, 2023

City of Kingsville
400 W. King Avenue / P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, TX 78364

Attn:  Rutilio “Rudy” P. Mora, Jr, PE, CFM - City Engineer

In response to your request, Ardurra Group, Inc — Survey Division (formerly LNV, LLC) is
proposing the following scope of services for the new sanitary forcemain easement to be located
between E. Santa Gertrudis and E. Kennedy Avenue just east of Highway 77, in Kingsville, Texas.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

e Ardurra shall perform the boundary work to establish the right-of-way of Kenedy Avenue
along with identifying the route of the existing sanitary sewer effluent line between the
waste water treatment plant and Kenedy Avenue.

+ Ardurra shall also submit a One-Call utility locate ticket for the city and third party utility
locators to mark their utilities along the route.

o To perform this work, Ardurra will need permission from the adjoining land owners
south of the waste water treatment plant and east of Tranquitas Creek.

o Ardurra shall prepare a survey exhibit and legal description of said easement and submit
to the client for their use.

o Ardurra shall receive a 24 to 48 hour notice for scheduling purposes and coordination for
site access to begin survey work.

e Any additional surveying services related to design services, bidding, and/or contract
administration shall be performed at our standard hourly rates according to the latest
Ardurra standard rate sheet, only upon authorization by Client.

» Optional — In the event utility location is required, Ardurra shall provide the Client with
hydro excavation services along the route between the waste water treatment plant and
Kenedy Avenue, assuming 4 potholes at locations To Be Determined at a later date.

o Hydro excavation service includes disposal of old material, new backfill material
(assuming non paved areas), and mobilization to and from site.

2230 Saratoga Boulevard | Corpus Christi, TX 78417 | 361.883.1984 | www.ardurra.com



April 24, 2023
Page 2

ARDURRA

ESTIMATE OF COST

Ardurra proposes to perform the above listed Scope of Services for a lump sum fee as
indicated below;

+ Surveying Services

o Fieldwork, Utilities, and CAD file $5,250
o New Utility Easement (for new sanitary forcemain) $3,500
o Optional —~ Hydro excavation services $5,500

» (includes 4 potholes at locations TBD)
Base Bid = $8,750 (assuming sales tax exempt)

Base Bid + Option = $14,250 (assuming sales tax exempt)

Any additional work not listed in the above Scope of Services will be performed in accordance
with our current contract rate schedule, only upon authorization by Client.

If you are in agreement with our proposal, please provide a Task Order to serve as our
authorization to proceed. We appreciate the opportunity to work with you and look forward to
providing you with our services. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at
361.883.1984 or by email, Scanales@ardurra.com

Sincerely,

D SE

Afddrra Group, Inc.

By: Sergio Z. Canales, RPLS
Its:  Senior Survey Manager

2230 Saratoga Boulevard | Corpus Christi, TX 78417 | 361.883.1984 | www.ardurra.com



NOLVIS 140
03S040¥d

AQINNIA 3 oo

INFAISVE IOVNIVHO
3014 14 52 ONUSIG®

TIOHNYW H¥3IM3IS ONUSEG
01 NIVN 30804 LJ3NNQD




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR UTILITY EASEMENT SURVEYING COSTS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#44

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 051 — Utility Fund

Expenditures

7001 | Wastewater Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $14,250

7001 Wastewater Professional Services 31400 $14,250

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to appropriate funding for utility easement
surveying costs. Funding will come from the Utility Fund Budget Amendment Reserve line
item.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
1



THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 8th day of May 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #7



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer
DATE: May 8, 2023

SUBJECT:  Consider a Resolution authorizing Participation in the Federal
Transportation Alternative Set-Aside Program Step 2 (Detailed Application)
through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT).

Summary:
On March 30, 2023, TxDOT notified the City that all three preliminary applications are
eligible to move forward to Step 2 (detailed application) and the deadline is June 5, 2023.

Background:

On December 2, 2022, Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) issued the 2023
Transportation Alternatives (TA) Call for Projects. The application is a two-step process.
Step 1 — Project Sponsors submit Preliminary Application(s) (PA) by January 27, 2023.
Step 2 — Project Sponsors submit Detailed Application(s) (DA) by June 5, 2023. If funds
are awarded, the City would be notified in the Fall of 2023 for TA FY2022 through FY2025.
See Table 1 attached for the 2023 TA Call for Projects schedule of important dates.

The project(s) would typically be funded by both federal (80%) and local (20%) funds.
Local funds are not required since the City’s local fund match will be covered by
Transportation Development Credits (TDCs). This year the grant also considers an
adjustment factor for inflation.

Eligible TA Project Activities include bicycle infrastructure improvements, shared use
paths, sidewalk improvements and infrastructure-related projects to improve safety for
non-motorized transportation.

Project Evaluation and Selection Criteria includes Safety, Project Readiness, Geographic
Equity, Connectivity & Accessibility, Community Support & Planning and Demand.

Allowable Costs eligible for federal reimbursement include Project Construction,
Preliminary Engineering and design, including preparation of construction plans,




City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

specifications and estimates, Environmental Documentation, Planning activities and
Right-of-way acquisition on a case -by-case basis as approved by TxDOT.

Costs not eligible for federal reimbursement include Planning Activities, Environmental
Mitigation, Utility Adjustments, Landscape Improvements and Land Acquisition.

The City may submit three(3) applications in 2023. Three project locations the City may
focus on are:

o East Escondido Road lighting & bike lane improvements
o City-wide Transportation Study that includes use of bicycle/pedestrian counters,
along with plans for:

o City-wide bike parking installations, high visibility crosswalk installations and
traffic calming activities directly supporting active transportation networks
(i.e. mini roundabouts, curb extensions/bulb-outs)

o Development of Active Transportation Non-Infrastructure projects (non-
motorized transportation networks) such as Safe Routes to School,
pedestrian, bicycle, safety action, and ADA transition plans

» Gillette Middle School/Harvey Elementary School/Jubilee Academies and Kleberg

Early Literacy & Continuing Education Center Pedestrian Sidewalk Bridge &
Crosswalk Improvements

Attached is Exhibit 1, a map indicating the proposed improvements to each area.

Financial Impact:
There is no financial impact in submitting the application.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends applying to the Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program 2023
Call for Projects for Step 2 Detailed Application.

Attachments:
Table 1: TxDOT’s 2023 TA Call for Projects Important Dates

Exhibit 1: 2023 TxDOT TA Call for Projects 1 through 3, Map and Detailed Descriptions

Resolution:




Table 1:

TxDOT's 2023 TA Call for Projects Important Dates

Milestones - ...
TxDOT’s 2023 TA Call for PrOJects opens December 2, 2022
Virtual workshops November 29 -~ December 16, 2022
Responses to workshop questions posted December 21, 2022*
Pretiminary Application (PA) deadline January 27, 2023
District coordination meeting Before March 17, 2023*
TxDOT PA review complete March 24, 2023
TxDOT notifies sponsors of eligibility and March 27, 2023
provides Detailed Application

Detailed Application (DA) deadline June 5, 2023
TxDOT DA review complete August 18, 2023*
Commission award October 2023~*

*Target dates

‘~J!.(

SN
IﬁngS/y(ﬂle

2023 TxDOT TA Call For Projects - Table 1 Important Dates lofl T



E. Escondido Road - Sidewalk, Bikelanes, & Lighting Improvements

et feies Eplh y aiettafve,
e . i
R Eloment School i 9]
;v‘,.m’;";% tary 3

wsl',e"m‘,iv'

o

o

Memorial
Middle School

Legend

Proposed Sidewalk Improvements

ammemme Ay arded

Proposed Bike Lanes & Lighting Improvements

Elementary Schools
Middle Schools
#‘g Ownership

i

W Aliced:
nire

dall &
“‘E'; Harvey
Elementary School

e
Warrenave

o
oftonStiE
T S
{E Millcrave
Ave er
i

_Improvements

. Projesth:
Escondido Lighting & Bike Lan

Jesus R. Pere;
Elementary Scho

e

DISCLAIMER:
THIS MAP IS FOR VISUAL PURPOSES ONLY,

THE INFORMATION ON THIS SHEET MAY
CONTAIN INACCURACIES OR ERRORS,
THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE IS NOT

o | Drawn By: G. AMAYA
o

2 Last Update: 4/25/2023

~~ | Note: Please see attached
= documents.

RESPONSIBLE IF THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN IS USED FOR ANY
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, PLANNING, BUILDING,
OR ANY OTHER PURPOSE.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

17" ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
ﬂle 400W

King Ave; Kingsville, TX 78363
Office: (361) 595-8007
o Fax: (361) 595-8064



City Wide Non Motorized Transportation Plan

Gilletta

BRI Ry

SrSanta AnHaDr

i

5 3 2 o
Memorial i

; <
: W@ el R D

Middie School % 8 X : EM“’""“"'AV‘;;““ sz 0
%f Alm& e

Legend

Proposed Sidewalk Improvements
m— A\ arded

Elementary Schools

Middle Schools

C!;\’:l? Drawn By: G. AMAYA | 1, e is rorvam cposes ONLY. - CITY OF KINGSVILLE
) , CONTAIN NAGGURACIES OR ERRONG. oY 2<% ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
-+ |Last Update: 4/25/2023 THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE 1S NOT : 400 W King Ave; Kingsville, TX 78363
bt RESPONSIBLE IF THE INFORMATION e Office: (361) 295-8007

. CONTAINED HEREIN {S USED FOR ¥ . e
>~ | Note: Please see attached |esin, coNSTRUCTION. FLANNNG, BULONG. Fax: (361) 535-8064
[aa documents. ORANY QTHER PURPOSE.




School Connectivity Pedestrian Sidewalk, Bike Line & Crosswalk Interloop Network

30

. Projects:
Pedestrian Sidewalk Bridge
& Crosswalk Improvements |

0 7

s CacaliaDy

am"%"‘

3 b
ieg

g

Memaorial
Middle School

Legend

Pedestrian Bridge Improvements

EBJ HAWK Signal - Crosswaik Improvements
Proposed Sidewalk Improvements
wmmmemse NOt Yot Awarded
e Ay arded

Elementary Schools
Middle Schools

i Ownership

o . ;
0%‘ Drawn By G. AMAYA THIS MAF IS Foglﬁf%&lmﬁmposes ONLY. . CITY OF KINGSVILLE
® || ast Undate: 4/25/2023 ‘CONTAN INACCURACIES OR ERRORS, Y o @7 ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
s |[2stUpdate: RESPONSIELE If THe INFORMATION ville 400w King Ave; Kingsvite, T 78363
~ | Note: Please see attached CONTAINED HEREIN IS USED FOR ANY Office: (361) 595-8007

. DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, PLANNING, BUILDING| Loe Fax: (361) 595-8064
> documents. OR ANY OTHER PURPOSE. e




RESOLUTION #2023-

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE’S APPLICATION TO
THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S 2023 TRANSPORTATION
ALTERNATIVES SET-ASIDE (TA) CALL FOR PROJECTS (FOR PEDESTRIAN
AND/OR BICYCLE INFRASTRUCTURE); AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT ON
THE CITY'S BEHALF WITH SUCH PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation issued a call for projects in
December 2023 for communities to apply for funding assistance through the
Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TA) Program, which is a two-step process with
step one being submittal of a preliminary application and step two being submittal of a
detailed application; and

WHEREAS, in January 2023, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville (“City”)
authorized staff to participate in phase one of the 2023 Transportation Alternatives Set-
Aside Program to seek funding for three projects near area schools for the development
and construction of pedestrian and/or bicycle infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the three project applications submitted were (1) East Escondido Road
lighting & bike lane improvements; (2) City-wide Transportation Study that includes use
of bicycle/pedestrian counters, along with plans for: (a) City-wide bike parking
installations, high visibility crosswalk installations and traffic calming activities directly
supporting active transportation networks, (b) development of active transportation non-
infrastructure projects such as Safe Routes to School, pedestrian, bicycle, safety action,
and ADA transition plans; and (3) Gillette Middle School/Harvey Elementary School/
Jubilee Academies and Kleberg Early Literacy & Continuing Education Center Pedestrian
Sidewalk Bridge & Crosswalk Improvements; and

WHEREAS, there is no financial impact in submitting the applications since the City’s
20% local match will be covered by Transportation Development Credits and the grant
has an adjustment factor for inflation; and

WHEREAS, the City recently received notice that the three Preliminary Applications were
accepted so that the City can now move forward with preparing and submitting the
Detailed Applications, which is step two of the grant process; and

WHEREAS, if the City is notified this fall that funding is being awarded, then it will be
placed on a Conditional Project List for anticipated funding for FYs 2023-2025; and

WHEREAS, the TA funds may be used for development of preliminary engineering
(plans, specifications, and estimates and environmental documentation) and construction
of pedestrian and/or bicycle infrastructure. The TA funds require a local match,
comprised of cash or Transportation Development Credits (TDCs), if eligible. The City of
Kingsville (“City”) would be responsible for all non-reimbursable costs and 100% of
overruns, if any, for TA funds; and



WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville believes it to be in the best
interest of the citizens of the City to apply for funding through this grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS THAT:

1. The City supports funding the projects as described in the 2023 TA Detailed
Application (including the preliminary engineering budget, if any, construction
budget, the department’'s 15% direct state cost for oversight, and the required
local match, if any) and is willing to commit to the project’s development,
implementation, construction, maintenance, management, and financing. The
City is willing and able to enter into an agreement with the department by
resolution or ordinance, should the project be selected for funding.

2. The City authorizes the Mayor, or his designee, to apply to the Texas
Department of Transportation’s 2023 Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TA)
Call for Projects.

3. The Mayor, or his designee, is hereby authorized and directed to act on the City's
behalf in all matters pertaining to the 2023 Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside
(TA) Call for Projects through the Texas Department of Transportation including
any certifications, amendments or representations stipulated therein and that the
Mayor, or his designee, will administer the program and execute and submit all
certifications, reports, or contracts necessary for the administration and
expenditure of such program.

4. This Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by majority vote of all members of the City Commission of
the City of Kingsville, Texas on the 8th day of May, 2023.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #8



City of Kingsville
Human Resources Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Diana Gonzales, HR Director
DATE: April 18, 2023

SUBJECT: All-Risk Property Insurance Renewal

Summary:

Background:

Financial Impact:

This item presented for consideration will authorize award of the All-Risk
Property Insurance Coverage for the City of Kingsville for the period of May
1, 2023 through April 30, 2024. This policy covers perils of Fire, Flood,
Earthquake, Lightening, Windstorm, Named Storms, and Equipment
Breakdown. The City’s Total Insured Values (TIV) for this renewal with
incumbent insurance carrier, AmRisc, are $62,872,506 an increase of
$4,407,848 comprised of valuation increases due to inflation (required by
carrier) and new assets.

In March 2023, Carlisle Insurance approached the City’s incumbent
Property Insurance carrier (Amrisc) to request a renewal quote. Carlisle
Insurance also solicited quotes from 37 additional property insurance
carriers that underwrite Coastal Windstorm and all-other peril risks. The
attached letter from Chase Carlisle illustrates the current state of the
global property insurance market which continues to be a hard market.
The proposal includes a list of the markets approached for this renewal.

See attached documents including recommendation from Carlisle
Insurance, AmRisc proposal and the Carrier’s Schedule of Values (SOV)
Breakout spreadsheet.

The enclosed renewal quote of $ 502,020,.96 is an increase of $173,828.21
as compared to the expiring premium. The increase is due primarily to the
Property Insurance marketplace which is driven by global and domestic
property insurance losses.



Recommendation:

City of Kingsville
Human Resources Department

Significant Changes
S50 million loss limit - All Other Perils
- Deductible increase from $ 10,000 to $ 25,000 per occurrence

S50 million loss limit - All Other Wind/Hail
- Deductible increase from $100,000 per occurrence to 1%
Minimum $100,000 per occurrence, per location

$25 million loss limit — Named Storm
- Deductible increase from 3% minimum $100,000 to
5% minimum $250,000 per occurrence, per location

Electronic Media — Limit decrease from 1 million to $500,000
Errors & Omissions — Limit decrease from $100,000 to $25,000

Fungus, Mold, Mildew, Spores, Yeast — Increase from $100,000 per
occurrence/annual aggregate to $250,000.

Property Insurance premiums are budgeted in Insurance-Property/Liability
Insurance line items in both the General Fund and the Utility Fund.

After review of Carlisle Insurance recommendation and AmRisc proposal,
staff is recommending continuing with AmRisc as the City’s all-risk
property insurance carrier for another policy year (May 1, 2023 — April 30,
2024) with an annual cost of $ 502,020.96.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE

ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE

PROPERTY INSURANCE EFFECTIVE MAY 2023.

INCREASE

IN ALL-RISK AND WINDSTORM

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#43

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 001 - General Fund

Expenditures

1030 | City Special Insurance-Property/Liab 33501 $86,914.11

1030 | City Special Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $86,914.11

Fund 051 — Utility Fund

Expenditures

6001 | Water Construct | Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $16,678.82

6002 | Water Product Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $17,513.20

6101 | Storm Water Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $2,789.95

6201 | Collections Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $10,360.17

7001 | WW-North Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $16,079.11

7002 | WW-South Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $4,180.56

7003 | Sewer Construct | Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $11,316.21

8000 | Engineering Insurance-Prop/Liab 33501 $7,996.09

6001 | Water Construct | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $86,914.11

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to appropriate additional funding for the
increase in All-Risk and Windstorm Property Insurance effective May 2023. Funding will come
from the Budget Amendment Reserve line items in General and Utility Funds.]

IL.
1




THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 8th day of May 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #9



City of Kingsville
Finance Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CcC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Deborah Balli, Finance Director

DATE: May 1, 2023

SUBIJECT: Budget Amendment For Donation Reclass
Summary:

The City received a $25,000 donation from the Brookshire Foundation in FY 21-22, and it was
inadvertently recorded in the General Fund instead of the Park Maintenance Fund where the
expenditure was budgeted. This reclassification must be corrected through a budget amendment
as it is a fund-to-fund transfer which requires commission approval.

Financial Impact:

Funding for this reclass will come from the unappropriated fund balance of the General Fund as
it occurred in FY 21-22.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the approval of the budget amendment for reclass of a Park donation received
in FY 21-22.




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO RECLASS
DONATION FROM GENERAL FUND 001 TO PARK MAINTENANCE FUND 093.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#44

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 001 — General Fund

Expenditures

6900 | Transfer Transfer to Fund 093 80093 $25,000
Fund 093 — Park Maintenance Fund

Revenues

4503 | Park Maint Park Donations 58003 $25,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to reclass donation from General Fund 001
to Park Maintenance Fund 093. Funding will come from the unappropriated fund balance of
General Fund.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

.
THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 8th day of May 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #10



City of Kingsville
Finance Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Deborah Balli, Finance Director

DATE: May 1, 2023

SUBIJECT: Budget Amendment For Water Meter Project Certificates of Obligation Interest
Payment

Summary:

Once the Certificates of Obligation are approved for the Water Meter Project, the first interest
payment of $46,512.50 will be due on August 1, 2023 and budget needs to be in place for
payment to be made.

Financial impact:
The payment will come from the Utility Fund Budget Amendment Reserve line item.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the approval of the budget amendment for the interest payment on the Water
Meter Project Certificates of Obligation.




May 1,2023 2:31 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 8.901 Kingsville:KINGSVIL-2023_3) Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

City Kingsville, Texas (General Obligation)
ClO, Series 2023
--Amegy Rates as of 5/1/2023--
--Stair-Stepped 15 Year Term--
--Callable 8/1/2028--
--For lllustration Purposes--

Dated Date 05/31/2023
Delivery Date 05/31/2023

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 6,100,000.00

6,100,000.00

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:
Project Fund 6,020,000.00

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 80,000.00

6,100,000.00




May 1,2023 2:31 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 8.901 Kingsville:KINGSVIL-2023_3) Page 2

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

City Kingsville, Texas (General Obligation)
C/O, Series 2023
--Amegy Rates as of 5/1/2023--
--Stair-Stepped 15 Year Term--
--Callable 8/1/2028--
--For llustration Purposes--

Dated Date 05/31/2023
Delivery Date 05/31/2023
First Coupon 08/01/2023
Last Maturity 08/01/2038
Arbitrage Yield 4.500753%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.500753%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4,500000%
NIC w/Interest only 4.500000%
NIC w/lInterest & OID 4.500000%
NIC w/interest, OID & Und. Discount 4.,500000%
All-In TIC 4.680031%
Average Coupon 4.500000%
Average Life (years) 9.433
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 9.433
Duration of Issue (years) 7.548
Par Amount 6,100,000.00
Bond Proceeds 6,100,000.00
Total Interest 2,589,462.50
Net Interest 2,589,462.50
Bond Years from Dated Date 57,543,611.11
Bond Years from Delivery Date 57,543,611.11
Total Debt Service 8,689,462.50
Maximum Annual Debt Service 604,975,00
Average Annual Debt Service 572,826.68

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
Average Takedown
Other Fee

Total Underwriter's Discount

Bid Price 100.000000
Average

Par Average Average Maturity PVof1bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life Date Duration change
Bond Component 6,100,000.00 100.000 4.500% 9.433  11/04/2032 7.548 4,508.85
6,100,000.00 9.433 4,508.85

All-In Arbitrage

TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 6,100,000.00 6,100,000.00 6,100,000.00

+ Accrued Interest
+ Premium (Discount)
- Underwriter's Discount

- Cost of Issuance Expense -80,000.00

- Other Amounts
Target Value 6,100,000.00 6,020,000.00 6,100,000.00
Target Date 05/31/2023 05/31/2023 05/31/2023

Yield 4.500753% 4.680031% 4.500753%




May 1,2023 2:31 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 8.901 Kingsville:KINGSVIL-2023_3) Page 3

BOND PRICING

City Kingsville, Texas (General Obligation)
C/0, Series 2023
--Amegy Rates as of 5/1/2023--
--Stair-Stepped 15 Year Term--
--Callable 8/1/2028--
--For lllustration Purposes--

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Bond Component:
08/01/2024 100,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2025 200,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2026 300,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2027 355,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2028 370,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2029 390,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2030 405,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2031 425,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2032 445,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2033 465,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2034 485,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2035 505,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2036 530,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2037 550,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000
08/01/2038 575,000 4.500% 4.500% 100.000

6,100,000

Dated Date 05/31/2023

Delivery Date 05/31/2023

First Coupon 08/01/2023

Par Amount 6,100,000.00

Original Issue Discount

Production 6,100,000.00  100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount

Purchase Price 6,100,000.00 100.000000%

Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 6,100,000.00




May 1, 2023 2:31 pm Prepared by DBC Finance

(Finance 8.901 Kingsville:KINGSVIL-2023_3) Page 4

BOND DEBT SERVICE

City Kingsville, Texas {(General Obligation)

C/O, Series 2023

--Amegy Rates as of 5/1/2023--
--Stair-Stepped 15 Year Term--
--Callable 8/1/2028--

--For Hlustration Purposes--

Period
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
09/30/2023 46,512.50 46,512.50
09/30/2024 100,000 4.500% 274,500.00 374,500.00
09/30/2025 200,000 4.500% 270,000.00 470,000.00
09/30/2026 300,000 4.500% 261,000.00 561,000.00
09/30/2027 355,000 4.500% 247,500.00 602,500.00
09/30/2028 370,000 4.500% 231,525.00 601,525.00
09/30/2029 390,000 4.500% 214,875.00 604,875.00
09/30/2030 405,000 4.500% 197,325.00 602,325.00
09/30/2031 425,000 4.500% 179,100.00 604,100.00
09/30/2032 445,000 4.500% 159,975.00 604,975.00
09/30/2033 465,000 4.500% 139,950.00 604,950.00
09/30/2034 485,000 4.500% 119,025.00 604,025.00
09/30/2035 505,000 4.500% 97,200.00 602,200.00
09/30/2036 530,000 4.500% 74,475.00 604,475.00
09/30/2037 550,000 4,500% 50,625.00 600,625.00
09/30/2038 575,000 4.500% 25,875.00 600,875.00
6,100,000 2,589,462.50 8,689,462.50




May 1, 2023 2:31 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 8.901 Kingsville:KINGSVIL-2023_3) Page 5

BOND DEBT SERVICE

City Kingsville, Texas (General Obligation)
C/O, Series 2023
--Amegy Rates as of 5/1/2023--
--Stair-Stepped 15 Year Term--
--Callable 8/1/2028--
--For lllustration Purposes--

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
08/01/2023 46,512.50 46,512.50
09/30/2023 46,512.50
02/01/2024 137,250.00 137,250.00
08/01/2024 100,000 4.500% 137,250.00 237,250.00
09/30/2024 374,500.00
02/01/2025 135,000.00 135,000.00
08/01/2025 200,000 4.500% 135,000.00 335,000.00
09/30/2025 470,000.00
02/01/2026 130,500.00 130,500.00
08/01/2026 300,000 4.500% 130,500.00 430,500.00
09/30/2026 561,000.00
02/01/2027 123,750.00 123,750.00
08/01/2027 355,000 4.500% 123,750.00 478,750.00
09/30/2027 602,500.00
02/01/2028 115,762.50 115,762.50
08/01/2028 370,000 4.500% 115,762.50 485,762.50
09/30/2028 601,525.00
02/01/2029 107,437.50 107,437.50
08/01/2029 390,000 4.500% 107,437.50 497,437.50
09/30/2029 604,875.00
02/01/2030 98,662.50 98,662.50
08/01/2030 405,000 4.500% 98,662.50 503,662.50
09/30/2030 602,325.00
02/01/2031 89,550.00 89,550.00
08/01/2031 425,000 4.500% 89,550.00 514,550.00
09/30/2031 604,100.00
02/01/2032 79,987.50 79,987.50
08/01/2032 445,000 4.500% 79,987.50 524,987.50
09/30/2032 604,975.00
02/01/2033 69,975.00 69,975.00
08/01/2033 465,000 4.500% 69,975.00 534,975.00
09/30/2033 604,950.00
02/01/2034 59,512.50 59,512.50
08/01/2034 485,000 4.500% 59,512.50 544,512.50
09/30/2034 604,025.00
02/01/2035 48,600.00 48,600.00
08/01/2035 505,000 4.500% 48,600.00 553,600.00
09/30/2035 602,200.00
02/01/2036 37,237.50 37,237.50
08/01/2036 530,000 4.500% 37,237.50 567,237.50
09/30/2036 604,475.00
02/01/2037 25,312.50 25,312.50
08/01/2037 550,000 4.500% 25,312.50 575,312.50
09/30/2037 600,625.00
02/01/2038 12,937.50 12,937.50
08/01/2038 575,000 4.500% 12,937.50 587,937.50
09/30/2038 600,875.00

6,100,000 2,589,462.50 8,689,462.50 8,689,462.50




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR FIRST INTEREST PAYMENT ON THE WATER METER PROJECT
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#46

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 051 - Utility Fund

Expenditures

6001 | Water Transfer to Fund 012 80012 $46,512.50

6001 | Water Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $46,512.50

Fund 012 — Utility Debt Service

Revenues

0000 | Non-Dept Transfer from Fund 051 75010 $46,512.50

Expenditures

5100 | Interest Interest Payment 62100 $46,512.50

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to appropriate funding for the first interest
payment on the Water Meter Project Certificates of Obligation. Funding will come from the
Utility Fund Budget Amendment Reserve line item.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the

extent of such conflict only.

1




THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 8th day of May 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



